RWE transgas

ANNUAL REpORT
FOR THE pERIOD OF SIx MONTHS ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2012

KEY RATIOS (CZECH ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)
2012*
Total sales (CZK m)

91,800

EBITDA (CZK m)

(14,038)

Operating result (CZK m)

(14,063)

Profit before taxation (CZK m)

1,333

Profit after taxation (CZK m)

3,792

Investments (CZK m)
Number of employees (converted to FTE)

39
488

* The key ratios reflect an accounting period of six months ended 31 December 2012.

RWE Transgas, a.s. is hereinafter also referred to as “the Company” or “RWE Transgas”.
The Company has been renamed RWE Supply & Trading CZ, a.s. as of 1 January 2013.
The Annual Report has been prepared in the Czech language and in English. In all matters
of interpretation of information, views or opinions, the Czech version of the Annual Report takes
precedence over the English version.

This Annual Report of RWE Transgas has been prepared for the period of six months ended
31 December 2012, because the preceding financial statements were prepared as extraordinary
financial statements, namely for the period of six months ended 30 June 2012. A related semi-annual
report was also prepared for the given period. The reason for the above extraordinary financial
statements was approval for the project of the division of RWE Plynoprojekt, s.r.o. by way
of a spin-off of one part of the company and the subsequent merger of the spun off part with the
Company and transfer of a part of the assets and liabilities of RWE Plynoprojekt, s.r.o., (the divided
company) to the parent company RWE Transgas (acquiring company). More details are set out
in the financial statements.
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1 The Chairman’s Statement
The year 2012 was marked by celebrations of the
10th anniversary of RWE’s entry into the Czech
gas market. Looking back, we can see how much
has changed and how much RWE Transgas and
the other companies in the RWE Group in the
Czech Republic have advanced over that time.
A fitting illustration of all of this is the fact that
in 2002, the RWE brand was virtually unknown
on the Czech market while today, nine of ten
Czechs are aware of it.
Because of the external environment, the past
12 months were not easy and required much
effort in all our business lines. Nevertheless, from
RWE Transgas’s point of view, it was a successful
year. This is primarily thanks to the diligent and
professional work, for which I would like to thank
all our employees and partners.
With regard to our long-term supply contract
portfolio, we marked encouraging successes.
In an ICC arbitration with Gazprom export
regarding the level of minimum off-take volumes,
we obtained a 100% victorious award. On price
revisions, we succeeded in agreeing structural

solutions with all our Norwegian suppliers such
that the pricing is adapted to wholesale traded
market levels, or, in one case, the contractual
relationship was even terminated. In our ongoing
price revision arbitration with Gazprom export,
the closing hearing took place in December 2012.
We expect an award in the first half of 2013.
The Company continued to face a tough business
environment in natural gas wholesale trade, with
pressure from volumes priced at the wholesale
traded market level. Demand continued to decline
in the Czech Republic in 2012 as well, and
further volumes had to be sold to other countries
at wholesale traded market price levels.
In the Retail gas business, companies faced
intensive competition. Czech gas market
is currently the most dynamic market in Europe
in terms of customer churn. However, RWE retail
companies managed to reduce the number of
customers migrating to other energy suppliers.
In the Retail electricity business, successful
acquisition continued. Every third electricity
customer who changed supplier last year went
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to RWE. In the second half of the year, companies
in the RWE Group in the Czech Republic concluded
more than 46,000 new electricity supply contracts.
With its almost 230,000 new electricity supply
agreements concluded since it started to sell
electrical energy, RWE is clearly the most successful
player in this part of the Czech energy market.
RWE Gas Slovensko was commercially very
successful; with its 21 percent market share,
it retained its position as the second largest
natural gas trader on the Slovak market.
It supplied gas to more than 8,500 companies
and institutions and to tens of thousands
of household customers in Slovakia, registering
total sales of 11,9 TWh.
In the list of our achievements, we should not
omit the completion of the GAZELLE gas pipeline.
The approximately CZK 10 billion investment,
made by what today is our sister company
NET4GAS, was the largest project carried out
in the Czech gas industry over the past almost
30 years. The commissioning of this gas pipeline
in early 2013 marked the completion of the
New Northern Route for natural gas transport
from Russia to Western Europe. This is a major
contribution to a larger diversification of sources
and a further enhancement of energy security
from a Czech as well as European perspective.
During 2012, the unbundling process of NET4GAS
made significant progress. The internal sale of this
subsidiary de facto marked the completion of the
unbundling process. This step was necessary,
and was based on applicable European Union
legislation that does not allow holders of gas
trade licences to own a gas transmission system
operator. RWE Transgas therefore sold its 100%
equity interest in NET4GAS to its parent company,
RWE Gas International. The whole transaction
was carried out under the standard conditions
of an intra-group sale, with an independent expert
determining the price. The proceeds from this
transaction have had a favourable effect on the
level of the Company’s result for the first half
of 2012.
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With a view to improving efficiency, flexibility
and profitability and to realigning the activities
on the Czech market, a restructuring of the whole
RWE Group in the Czech Republic was launched
under the management of RWE Transgas.
The result will be its streamlining into four
business segments, namely: gas storage; energy
trading; distribution, operation and maintenance;
and electricity and heat generation. As part
of this move, the activities that were hitherto
provided by the RWE Plynoprojekt subsidiary have
been reorganised. This subsidiary’s employees
have been transferred to KA Contracting ČR
and to RWE Distribuční služby.
Furthermore, RWE Česká republika was
established as a completely new company.
As of 1 January 2013, it has taken over
the steering role within the RWE Group
in the Czech Republic from the Company.
As of 1 January 2013, RWE Transgas carries
on its business under a new company name:
RWE Supply & Trading CZ, a.s. It continues
to manage long-term natural gas purchase,
storage and transport contracts, but focuses
exclusively on wholesale energy trading. The
Company’s other activities, and its assets and
employees, were prepared last year for their
transfer to RWE Česká republika.
This Annual Report proves that 2012 was
an exceptional year. A year of strong competition
on both the gas and the electricity market. A year
of reorganisation and efficiency improvements.
Coping with all challenges was essential for
maintaining the Company’s leadership in the
natural gas market and for the RWE Group’s growth
in the electricity market. The results you have
just received in this report encourage optimism.
I look forward to our continued co-operation
in the new era of RWE Česká republika and
RWE Supply & Trading CZ.

Martin Herrmann
Chairman, Board of Directors
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2 Report of the Supervisory Board for the
period of six monthS ended 31 December 2012
The Supervisory Board continuously monitored
the Company’s business activities, its results
and the Board of Directors’ performance of its
powers and responsibilities in the second
half of 2012. In the second half of 2012,
the Supervisory Board held two ordinary meetings
and had a quorum at all times. Further, it adopted
one resolution per rollam. At its meetings
the Supervisory Board discussed all matters
for which it is responsible under the relevant
legal regulations, the Company’s Articles
of Association, and the decisions adopted by the
sole shareholder acting in the capacity of the
General Meeting, including the documents that
the Supervisory Board requested from the Board
of Directors as part of its supervisory activity.
Members of the Board of Directors commented
on these documents when they were discussed
by the Supervisory Board.

The Supervisory Board recommends
to the General Meeting to approve the financial
statements for the period of six months ended
31 December 2012 and the Board of Directors’
proposal for the distribution of profit for the
period of six months ended 31 December 2012.

In performing its supervisory activity
the Supervisory Board did not find anything
inconsistent with generally applicable legal
regulations, the Company’s Articles of Association,
or the decisions of the sole shareholder acting
in the capacity of the General Meeting.

Dr Rolf Martin Schmitz

On 7 March 2013, the Supervisory Board reviewed
the Company’s financial statements for the period
of six months ended 31 December 2012, and the
Board of Directors’ proposal for the distribution
of profit, including the amount and the manner
of payment of dividends.
Concurring with the auditor the Supervisory
Board concluded that the financial statements
give a true and fair view of the financial position
of the Company as at 31 December 2012,
its financial performance and its cash flows for the
period of six months ended 31 December 2012
in accordance with Czech accounting legislation.

The Supervisory Board expresses its gratitude
to all employees for their hitherto work performed
for the Company in the second half of 2012.
Prague, on 7 March 2013

Chairman, Supervisory Board
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3 BACKGROUND
3.1 Identification
Name: 	RWE Transgas, a.s.
(since 1 January 2013, RWE Supply & Trading CZ, a.s.)
Registered office: 	Praha 10 – Strašnice, Limuzská 12/3135, Post Code 100 98
Company No.:

26460815

Legal form:

Joint stock company

Establishment and Inception
of the Company
In its Resolution No 1072 of 1 November 2000,
the Government of the Czech Republic approved
the procedure for the privatisation of state-owned
Transgas, s.p. and minority interests in regional
distribution companies. On 2 May 2001,
the National Property Fund of the Czech Republic
removed all assets from Transgas, s.p. and
contributed them to a newly established company,
Transgas, a.s. The new company was incorporated
on 18 June 2001 in the Commercial Register
maintained by the Municipal Court in Prague,
Section B, Insert 7240. In its Resolution No 1342
of 17 December 2001, the Government of the
Czech Republic issued, under Section 10 (1)
of Act No 92/1991 on the Conditions of the
Transfer of the State’s Property to Other Persons,
as amended, a decision to privatise the State’s
equity interests in the business of Transgas,
a.s. and regional distribution companies by way
of a trade sale to RWE Gas Aktiengesellschaft, having
its registered office at Kampstrasse 49, D-44137
Dortmund, the Federal Republic of Germany.
On 29 January 2002, the respective Share Purchase
Agreement was signed by and between the National
Property Fund of the Czech Republic and RWE Gas
Aktiengesellschaft. This step completed the process
of the privatisation of the Czech gas industry.

Company Profile
RWE Transgas is a commercial company whose
core business is natural gas wholesale. It was
also the controlling company of the RWE Group
in the Czech Republic in 2012, when it also carried
out activities in natural gas trade, distribution
and storage, heat production and distribution,
electricity generation from renewable energy
sources, and electricity trade, through its subsidiary
and sister companies.

The Company’s organisational
units abroad
On 28 August 2008, the Company established
its organisational unit in the Slovak Republic
under the name of RWE Transgas, a.s.
organizačná zložka; registered office at Mlynská 31,
042 91 Košice; it is incorporated in the Commercial
Register of the Košice District Court under
Company No. [IČO]: 36 859 877.

RWE Transgas

3.2 Information about Shareholders and Securities
The Company has issued 36,550,385 registered
shares in certificated form, each with a par
value of CZK 800. The only shareholder
of RWE Transgas, a.s. is RWE Gas International N.V.,
having its registered office at Willemsplein 4,
5211AK, ‘s-Hertogenbosch, the Kingdom
of the Netherlands.
On 8 December 2005, the Company entered
into a controlling agreement with RWE Energy
AG. The Company is part of the RWE Group,
and it is controlled by its parent company
on the basis of this agreement. The agreement
has been in force since 1 January 2006 and
all matters arising from the agreement are
governed by the laws of the Czech Republic.
The controlling person agrees to recompense
the Company’s loss to the extent to which such
loss cannot be covered from the Company’s
reserve fund or other available resources no later
than two years of the day of approval of the
Company’s financial statements. As a result
of the restructuring of the RWE Group, the rights
and obligations under the controlling agreement
passed to RWE Aktiengesellschaft, Essen,
the Federal Republic of Germany, with effect
from 1 September 2009. The Company does not
prepare a report under Section 66a (9) of Act
No 513/1991, the Commercial Code, by virtue
of the controlling agreement.
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3.3 Governing and Supervisory Bodies
The Company’s Board of Directors as at 31 December 2012
Martin Herrmann

Axel Gerhardy

Chairman, Strategy & Communication
Born:
3 July 1967
Education:
Westfälische Wilhelms-Universität, Münster,
Economics
Membership of bodies of other companies:
RWE East, s.r.o. Managing Director; Chairman
of the RWE Česká republika a.s. Board of Directors;
Chairman of the NET4GAS, s.r.o.,
Jihomoravská plynárenská, a.s.,
Severomoravská plynárenská, a.s.,
Východočeská plynárenská, a.s., RWE Energie, a.s.
and RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o. Supervisory Boards;
Member of the RWE Supply & Trading GmbH,
Budapesti Elektromos Müvek Nyrt. and ÉMÁSz Nyrt
Supervisory Boards
Any other business activities:
None

Vice-Chairman, Finance
Born:
14 August 1971
Education:
Georg-August–Universität, Göttingen, Economics
Membership of bodies of other companies:
Vice-Chairman of the RWE Česká republika a.s.
Board of Directors; Member of the
RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o. Supervisory Board
Any other business activities:
None

RWE Transgas
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Tomáš Varcop

Member, Supply & Wholesale
Born:
12 June 1953
Education:
University of Hamburg, Doctorate in Law;
Executive MBA, California State University Hayward
Membership of bodies of other companies:
Member of the RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o.
Supervisory Board
Any other business activities:
None

Member, National Sales
Born:
15 April 1965
Education:
Brno University of Technology,
Faculty of Mechanical Engineering;
MBA from University of Pittsburgh
Membership of bodies of other companies:
Member of the RWE Česká republika a.s.
Board of Directors; Member
of the Jihomoravská plynárenská, a.s.,
Severomoravská plynárenská, a.s.
and Východočeská plynárenská, a.s.
Supervisory Boards
Any other business activities:
None

Changes in the Company’s Board of Directors in 2012:
At its meeting on 9 May 2012, the Board of Directors discussed and took due note of the resignation
of Mr Dirk Simons as a member and Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors as of 30 June 2012.
On 29 May 2012, the sole shareholder, acting in the capacity of the Company’s General Meeting,
elected Axel Gerhardy as a new member of the Board of Directors with effect as of 1 July 2012.
On 11 July 2012, Axel Gerhardy was elected as a Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors at the Board
of Directors’ meeting.
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The Company’s Supervisory Board as at 31 December 2012
Dr Rolf Martin Schmitz

Dr Rolf Pohlig

Chairman
Born:
17 June 1957
Education:
Technische Hochschule Aachen,
Mechanical Engineering, Doctorate in Engineering
Membership of bodies of other companies:
Vice-Chairman of the RWE AG Board of Directors;
Chairman of the RWE Deutschland AG,
RWE Generation SE, RWE Power AG,
RWE Turkey Holding A.S.
and Süwag Energie AG Supervisory Boards;
Member of the Essent N.V. and KELAG-Kärntner
Elektrizitäts-AG Supervisory Boards;
and Kärntner Energieholding Beteiligungs GmbH
Managing Director
Any other business activities:
None

Vice-Chairman
Born:
10 December 1952
Education:
Ruhr-Universität Bochum, Economics,
Doctorate in Economics
Membership of bodies of other companies:
Member of the RWE AG Board of Directors;
Chairman of the RWE Pensionsfonds AG
Supervisory Board; Member of the RWE Power AG,
RWE Dea AG, RWE Deutschland AG
and Essent N.V. Supervisory Boards
Any other business activities:
None
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Patrik Bauer

Thomas Jan Hejcman

Member
Born:
28 May 1977
Education:
Charles University in Prague,
Faculty of Social Sciences,
Institute of Economic Studies
Membership of bodies of other companies:
Vice-Chairman of the RWE Grid Holding, a.s.
Supervisory Board; Member of the
RWE Česká republika a.s. and TE Plomin d.o.o.
Supervisory Boards
Any other business activities:
None

Member
Born:
10 February 1962
Education:
University of Freiburg, Faculty of Economics
Membership of bodies of other companies:
Chairman of the Východoslovenská energetika a.s.
Board of Directors; Member of the
RWE Česká republika a.s. Supervisory Board
Any other business activities:
None

František Čech
Member
Born:
16 June 1979
Education:
University of Economics, Prague,
Faculty of International Relations
Membership of bodies of other companies:
Member of the RWE Česká republika a.s.
Supervisory Board
Any other business activities:
None

František Kolátor
Member
Born:
9 May 1980
Education:
Charles University in Prague,
Faculty of Social Sciences,
Institute of Economic Studies
Membership of bodies of other companies:
None
Any other business activities:
None
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Michal Pech

Andreas Günter Zetzsche

Member
Born:
27 September 1976
Education:
University of Economics, Prague, Faculty
of International Relations; Czech University of Life
Sciences in Prague, Faculty of Engineering
Membership of bodies of other companies:
None
Any other business activities:
None

Member
Born:
20 January 1956
Education:
European Business School Eltville,
Master in Business Administration
Membership of bodies of other companies:
None
Any other business activities:
None

Filip Thon
Member
Born:
17 June 1972
Education:
Institute of Chemical Technology Prague,
doctorate at VŠB-Technical University of Ostrava
Membership of bodies of other companies:
RWE East, s.r.o. Managing Director; Chairman
of the RWE Polska S.A. Board of Directors; Chairman
of the RWE Česká republika a.s. Supervisory Board;
Member of the Východoslovenská energetika a.s.
and Essent N.V. Supervisory Boards
Any other business activities:
None

Changes in the Company’s Supervisory Board in 2012:
At its meeting on 8 March 2012, the Supervisory Board discussed the resignations of Mr Norbert Heinrich
Schürmann and Mr Axel Gerhardy as members of the Supervisory Board with effect as of 8 March 2012.
The sole shareholder, acting in the capacity of the Company’s General Meeting, elected Mr Thomas
Jan Hejcman and Mr Patrik Bauer as new members of the Supervisory Board with effect as of 1 May 2012.
On 12 June 2012, the five-year term of office ended for the following Supervisory Board members
who had been elected by the employees: Mrs Lucie Čejková, Mr Michal Pech and Mrs Šárka Vojíková.
On the basis of the results of elections of Supervisory Board members to be elected by the employees,
the following became new members of the Supervisory Board with effect as of 20 June 2012:
Mr František Čech, Mr František Kolátor and Mr Michal Pech, who was re-elected by the employees.
At its meeting on 21 November 2012, the Supervisory Board discussed the resignation of Dr Rolf Pohlig
as a member and Vice-Chairman of the Supervisory Board and upon his request approved the termination
of his office with effect as of 31 December 2012.

RWE Transgas
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3.4 Persons Responsible for the Annual Report and for the Audit of Financial Statements
Auditor and the audit company responsible for reviewing the financial statements
of RWE Transgas, a.s. for the period of six months ended 31 December 2012
Audit company:

Responsible auditor:

PricewaterhouseCoopers Audit, s.r.o.
Tomáš Bašta
Hvězdova 1734/2c,
Licence No 1966
140 00 Praha 4, Czech Republic
Registered in the Register of Audit Companies
with the Chamber of Auditors of the Czech Republic under Licence No 021
Prague, 8 March 2013

Person responsible for accounting
Lucie Čejková
Head of Accounting RWE Service CZ, s.r.o.

Persons responsible for the Annual Report of RWE Transgas, a.s. for the period
of six months ended 31 December 2012
The undersigned hereby affirm that the disclosures in this Annual Report are true and that no material
circumstances have been omitted or distorted.

Martin Herrmann

Axel Gerhardy

Chairman, Board of Directors

Vice-Chairman, Board of Directors
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4 Management Report for the period
of six Months Ended 31 December 2012
4.1 Results
Revenues, expenses and profit
For the 6-month period ending on 31 December 2012
(hereinafter also referred to as “2H 2012”),
the Company achieved a profit after taxation
of CZK 3,792 million. Profit before taxation
amounted to CZK 1,333 million. For the full
year 2012, the Company’s profit after taxation
amounted to CZK 51,990 million.

million. For the full year 2012, added value was
minus CZK 15,807 million. Year-on-year, added
value dropped by CZK 13,254 million. The deeply
negative added value confirms the persistently
unfavourable development on the natural gas
market. This negative development was offset in
2010 by provisioning for future losses and risks
related to the existing long-term contracts for
natural gas purchase and the expected unfavourable

Net profit (loss) after taxation

Operating result

The 6-month period
ended 31 December 2012

The 6-month period
ended 30 June 2012

(14,063 )

(7,250 )

Added value

(9,720 )

(6,087)

Operating provisions

(4,152 )

(899)

(191)

(265)

Other operating charges and income
Financial result

15,396

54,084

Tax on profit or loss on ordinary activities – deferred

2,459

1,364

Net profit (loss) after taxation

3,792

48,198

For the second half of 2012, RWE Transgas’s
operating result amounted to minus
CZK 14,063 million. Operating income amounted
to CZK 92,633 million while operating charges
were CZK 106,696 million. Thus, the period saw
a continuation of the unfavourable trend from
the first half of 2012, when the gas purchase
cost significantly exceeded the achievable
sales prices. Operating result for the full year
2012 amounted to minus CZK 21,313 million.
Year-on-year, the operating result deteriorated
by CZK 21,859 million.
For the second half of 2012, the Company reported
a negative added value of minus CZK 9,720

development of market prices. However, the amount
of provisioning in the previous periods turned
out to be insufficient, and it had to be further
increased due to the currently highly unfavourable
development of market prices.
For the second half of 2012, the financial result
amounted to CZK 15,396 million. This was mainly
achieved by selling the Company’s 90% equity
interest in its subsidiary RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o.
for CZK 15,315 million and its equity interests
in other subsidiaries for a total of CZK 3,091 million.
The Company therefore continued in the
restructuring process launched in the first half
of 2012 with a view to realigning its current business

RWe transgas
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activities in the Czech Republic. For full year 2012,
the financial result amounted to CZK 69,480 million;
the Company’s proceeds from the sale of its equity
interests were CZK 71,728 million.
For the 6-month period ending
on 31 December 2012, the Company invested
CZK 39 million in tangible fixed assets.
That period did not see any acquisition of equity
interests, and investments therefore significantly
decreased compared with the preceding period.

Structure of assets and liabilities
Structure of assets
As at 31 December 2012, the Company’s total
assets decreased to CZK 87,609 million, i.e.,
by 33.5% compared with the first half of 2012.
Fixed assets accounted for 12.6% of total assets.
Fixed assets were worth CZK 11,061 million and
were mostly made up of long-term investments
worth CZK 11,007 million and also tangible fixed
assets worth CZK 54 million.
The drop in long-term investments by 67%
compared with the previous 6-month period

ending on 30 June 2012 was caused by the
disposal of long-term investments, mainly the
sale of the Company’s 90% equity interest in its
subsidiary RWE Gas Storage s.r.o., and also by the
reclassification of its long-term credit and loans
to companies in the Group as short-term receivables
and by the transformation of its equity interests
in controlled companies into short-term securities
and interests.
Current and other assets decreased
by CZK 21,081 million and amounted
to CZK 76,549 million as at 31 December 2012.
In the current assets category, short-term
receivables decreased by CZK 23,126 million,
long-term receivables increased
by CZK 2,459 million and inventories decreased
by CZK 791 million.
The decrease in short-term receivables was mainly
due to the lower volume of short-term credit
and loans provided to companies in the RWE Group.
Financial assets decreased by CZK 437 million and
other assets decreased by CZK 60 million.
Short-term receivables accounted for 64% and
inventories for 20% of current and other assets.

Structure of assets (CZK million)

3,902

433

4,340

372

5,022

34,156

7,481

11,061

16,131

15,340

72,142

49,016

30 July 2012
Fixed assets
Financial assets

31 December 2012
Short-term receivables

Inventories
Other assets

Long-term receivables
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Structure of equity and liabilities (CZK million)
87

168

25,451

90,465

38,015

29,580

15,784

19,846

30 July 2012
Equity

31 December 2012
Provisions

Structure of equity and liabilities
The Company’s equity decreased
by CZK 52,450 million to CZK 38,015 million
as at 31 December 2012, and accounted
for 43.4% of the Company’s total shareholders’
equity and liabilities. The reasons for this
significant drop in equity include in particular the
payout of dividends totalling CZK 45,788 million.
The reserve fund increased by CZK 2,410 million
to CZK 3,866 million.
Borrowings and other liabilities amounted
to CZK 49,595 million, and were made up
of short-term liabilities, 60%, and provisions, 40%.

Risk management
At RWE Transgas, the responsibility for risk
management falls within the remit of the Risk
Management Committee, whose members
are representatives of the Company’s management.
The Company records all identified risks in the Risk
Catalogue. All risks are also recorded in a matrix
of risks, which helps to identify the most serious

Short-term liabilities

Other liabilities

risks in terms of the probability of their occurrence
and size of potential damage. RWE Transgas
covers the most significant risks with the help
of insurance, hedging transactions, caps on risk
positions, provisioning, and application of various
preventive measures, depending on the nature
of each particular risk.
The Company re-measures all derivatives
at their fair value as at the balance sheet day.
RWE Transgas does not use hedge accounting.

Research and Development
The Company does not carry out research
and development of new products.

RWE Transgas
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4.2 Natural Gas Business
Gas purchase
In 2012, RWE Transgas’s gas purchase portfolio
mainly included long-term contracts for natural
gas supply. The Company bought natural gas from
Russia (it has the largest long-term supply contract
in place with Gazprom export LLC) and Norway
(supply contracts with four different Norwegian
suppliers; the contract with one of them was
terminated as of 1 October 2012). On the one
hand, this pattern of gas procurement helped
to diversify the portfolio and improve the situation
in terms of security of supply; on the other
hand, however, it complicated RWE Transgas’s
competitive position.

In the second half of 2012, total purchases under
long-term supply contracts amounted to 55.2 TWh
of natural gas, i.e., for 2012 the total quantity was
106.9 TWh. The price level under most of these
contracts is mainly determined by the development
of oil and coal prices in international markets
and the development of exchange rates.
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Gas sales
In 2012, RWE Transgas supplied 52.1 TWh
of natural gas in the Czech Republic, of which
21.6 TWh in the second half of the year. The main
reason for the year-on-year 7% growth was higher
sales in the wholesale market to customers outside
the RWE Group. Despite the persisting negative
spread between the market price of natural gas
and its purchase price under long-term contracts
with gas producers, the unfavourable development
of sales volumes in previous years was arrested.
As in previous years, in 2012 natural gas was also
sold through the VOP system (Wholesale Sales
System) in the Czech Republic. The VOP system
provides for transparent and non-discriminatory
sales to all customers in the Czech wholesale
market. In response to the development of the
Czech wholesale gas market, in 2012 the range
of products offered in the VOP system was further
expanded so as to better match the current market
conditions. These changes met with a positive
response from customers.

In 2012, RWE Transgas continued to strengthen
its position in Slovakia primarily through
its subsidiary RWE Gas Slovensko, s.r.o.
It facilitated a supply of 12.0 TWh of natural
gas (of which 5.5 TWh in the second half of the
year), which means a year-on-year increase
of 9%. The Company achieved this success
primarily thanks to retaining its key accounts
in the segment of large business customers
and to developing sales in the segment of smaller
business customers, and the household segment.
In other international traded markets,
RWE Transgas sold a net quantity of 52.5 TWh
of natural gas in 2012 (of which 29.2 TWh was
sold in the second half of the year), which implies
a significant year-on-year growth of 35%.
The Company supplied all its customers on the
Czech and Slovak markets in accordance with
its contractual obligations. The Company also
honoured all of its obligations in February 2012
when gas supply from Velké Kapušany was
considerably curtailed due to very low
temperatures and related high consumption.

RWe transgas

Gas transmission
In 2012, RWE Transgas held gas transport
agreements with Moscow-based Gazprom
export LLC, Leipzig-based Verbundnetz Gas AG,
and Kassel-based Wintershall Holding GmbH.
The contract with Verbundnetz Gas AG and the
contract with Wintershall Holding GmbH,
including all the obligations, were assigned
to NET4GAS, s.r.o. as of 1 October 2012
and 1 January 2013, respectively.
In 2012, RWE Transgas transported 23.6 bcm
of natural gas across the Czech Republic for these
companies; of this, it transported 11.2 bcm in the
second half of the year.
The Company bought all services related to gas
transmission across the Czech Republic from
NET4GAS, s.r.o. This Transmission System Operator
not only provides reliable supplies for the Czech
market, but is also an important part of the
European transit system for natural gas deliveries.

ANNUAL RepORt
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4.3 Business, Marketing and Communication Activities
Business strategy
In the first half of 2012, the strategic business
priorities of the RWE Group companies in the
Czech Republic directly followed up on the
objectives pursued in the preceding period.
They focused on retaining the existing market
share in natural gas sales, and also on a dynamic
growth in the electricity market.
As in the preceding period, the Company sold
natural gas through the RWE Group’s regional
gas companies. Their achievements in the natural
gas and electricity markets were heavily impacted
by highly active competitors. These included
both the incumbent suppliers, who now offer
both of these key commodities, and many smaller
competitors that operate either in selected
regions or throughout the Czech Republic. The
persisting surplus of natural gas on the European
gas market was another major factor that
determined the changes on the energy market.
As competition on the market grows stronger,
unfair competition practices, mainly associated
with certain smaller energy suppliers’ dealers,
are also persisting.

The Company’s National Sales division
proactively tackles these challenges and during
the year devised a number of major innovations
to the products and services intended for the
household segment and for businesses. Their
purpose was to enhance customers’ satisfaction
with the current offering of gas and electricity
from RWE. In the corporate segment, offers
of structured products and solutions customised
to key accounts were an integral part of these
efforts. In its business activities, the Company
also consistently applied measures in business
risk management to prevent undesirable impacts
on its finances.

RWe transgas

Marketing activities
In 2012, RWE Transgas’s centralised Sales
& Marketing department focused on retaining
the existing portfolio of RWE’s customers who take
natural gas in the Household and Small Customer
categories, and on a continuous increase in the
number of new electricity customers. Activities
at all levels of marketing continue to be based
on a single shared idea: the customers and their
needs are at the centre of RWE’s interest at all times.
In electricity sales, Sales & Marketing department
developed a new product guaranteeing that the
price of electrical energy would not be increased
until the end of 2013 (RWE Fair 2013); its sales
were very successful. Support for a low price
of electrical energy through the RWE Start
product also continued. Marketing communication
supporting electricity sales used a uniform form
of communication (including the star of its TV
commercials) throughout 2012, with a view
to inducing a comprehensive and understandable
perception of the RWE brand’s position on the
Czech market. Consumer competitions prepared
for RWE Group’s new and current customers and
the contest prepared on the occasion of RWE’s
10th anniversary on the Czech market, in which
customers competed for up to 10 years of electricity
completely free of charge, also met with success.
The Company also continued its intensive
concentration on natural gas and on launching new
offerings for attractive prices. Tens of thousands
of current and new customers took advantage
of the offer of new products enabling the fixing
of the natural gas price for up to two years also
in 2012. Thanks to this offer, the RWE Group
in the Czech Republic has become the leading
energy supplier in the Czech market, who offers
fixed electricity and natural gas prices.

ANNUAL RepORt

A broad range of services provided to all customers
of the RWE Group companies in the Czech Republic
also undergoes continuous development. The free
RWE ONLINE SERVIS online application is one
of the key services. It offers the opportunity
to manage all issues related to natural gas
and electricity from the comfort of customers’
homes or offices, and the option to contact RWE
over the NONSTOP customer line or in a broad
network of customer centres.
Nor did the Company neglect the issue of rational
energy use in 2012; it supported a number
of activities related to this issue. Clear evidence
of this effort is a special website at setrimenergii.
cz, which offers hundreds of tips and extensive
advice on how to reduce energy costs and makes
it possible to monitor electricity, natural gas
and water consumption in every household.
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Communication activities
The year 2012 was mainly associated with
the holding of the celebrations of the
10th anniversary of the RWE energy group’s
entry into the Czech market. PR & Press Services
coordinated, and arranged for all the Czech
companies in the Group, the presentation of this
anniversary. The purpose was to raise RWE’s
profile as hitherto the largest foreign investor
in the Czech Republic.
The symbol “10” was added to the RWE brand
and became part of the Group’s stationery
and electronic communication. A meeting with
key trade partners took place before the closing
concert of the Prague Spring International Music
Festival, of which RWE Transgas was the official
partner for the 18th time this year.

RWE Transgas

The Company’s predominant sponsorship
activities include RWE – Energy of Czech Film
and RWE – Energy of Czech Skiing. The first half
of 2012 saw premières of three feature films:
Helena Třeštíková’s documentary Soukromý
vesmír [Private Universe], Tomáš Řehořek’s satirical
drama Signál [Signal], and Marie Poledňáková’s
comedy Líbáš jako ďábel [Kissing like a Devil],
which was highly popular with audiences.
In the autumn, there were two additional films:
Ve stínu [In the shadow], a detective story set
in the past, which received high acclaim from
reviewers, and another historical film, 7 dní hříchů
[Seven Days of Sins]. The Company continued
its co-operation with Filmová nadace
RWE & Barrandov Studio [RWE & Barrandov Studio
Film Foundation]. It was the main partner of Czech
Film Review Awards and of the Pavel Koutecký
Award for documentaries.

Annual Report
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As part of the RWE – Energy of Czech Skiing
project, the Company was a partner of 18 ski
resorts at the end of 2012; it supported
skiing for the disabled, Sportovní gymnázium
[a grammar school promoting sports] in Vrbno
pod Pradědem and Sportovní akademie [Sports
Academy] in Špindlerův Mlýn. It contributed to the
preparation of a popular sport reality show called
S ČT sport na vrchol [All the Way to the Top with
Czech Television Sport].
RWE KARTA [RWE CARD] brought the advantages
of both sponsorship projects to customers.
Thanks to this card, customers could obtain
20% discounts on Czech films in partner multiplex
cinemas and on one-day ski passes at partner
ski resorts.

RWe transgas

RWE Transgas, the General Partner of the Czech
Olympic Team, and the regional companies
of the RWE Group in the Czech Republic, joined
a nationwide road show organised before the 2012
London Olympic Games. The Company associated
its competition for customers of the Group’s
companies, called RWE – s energií do Londýna
[RWE – With Energy to London], which gave
40 winners an opportunity to visit the summer
Olympics, with the London Games. The Company
was also the General Partner of the Czech
Paralympic Team, thereby supporting the Czech
paralympic athletes’ trip to London.

ANNUAL RepORt

RWE Transgas organised a number of events
for the employees of almost all companies
of the RWE Group in the Czech Republic, which
were primarily intended to promote corporate
culture and enhance customer focus. It organised
screenings of the film Líbáš jako ďábel, and held
the winter and summer sport games and the Blue
Day in Nové Město na Moravě, the programme
of which was also intended for employees’ families.
The employees’ social commitment was supported
by the RWE COMPANiUS initiative geared
towards financial and organisational support
for volunteering. For the full year 2012, out
of the 122 applications 80 projects in various
areas were supported; they were worth a total
of CZK 1.8 million and the Company’s share
amounted to CZK 1 million.
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4.4 Human Resources
In the Human Resources Section, the second
half of 2012 was marked by several projects
and events that were important for the whole
Group. In October, a new satisfaction survey was
conducted, the first in three years. Its main purpose
was to receive feedback from employees such
as their suggestions for improving the efficiency
of everyday processes, thereby obtaining a bigger
picture of how we were doing, what progress
we had made since 2009, and what areas needed
improvements. A record number of employees
participated in the survey; the response rate
was an excellent 80%, which was 7% more than
that of the previous survey. The humanitarian
project that supports home biogas plants in
Cambodia also helped to generate this great
interest in participation, because the amount
of the contribution to the project was linked to the
response rate of the various companies’ employees
in the survey. With regard to the participation
achieved in the satisfaction survey, the RWE Group
will support the erection of 154 biogas plants
for almost CZK 300,000 through the Člověk v tísni
[People in Need] non-governmental organisation.
Several successful activities also took place as part
of The Woman to Lead project (the Group-wide
Diversity programme), which is mainly geared

towards women in managerial positions and
women with great potential; examples include
a conference called Žena na palubě [Woman
on Board] and continuing the successful series
of meetings with interesting personalities,
Snídaně s… [Breakfast with ...].
The Human Resources Section continued
to make additional improvements to the package
of employee benefits, on the RWE Benefit
Portal. For example, the opportunity to place
orders for a free Ticket Benefits Card payment
card, which provides much greater convenience
when selecting and buying benefits, was highly
attractive to all employees.
Last but not least, the Human Resources
Section intensively pursued opportunities in the
recruitment and employment of disabled people.
The end of the year also saw the completion of the
preparations for the refurbishment of the fitness
centre in the Company’s building at the Limuzská
Street; refurbishment is planned for early 2013.

Staffing levels
As at 31 December 2012, RWE Transgas
had 488 employees.

Employee structure by education, in percent
3%
67%

30%

Secondary

Complete secondary

Tertiary

RWE Transgas

Wages
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Wage levels continued to develop in accordance with
the principles agreed in the Collective Agreement
and the plans and intentions of the Company’s
management in respect of human resources.

In the second half of 2012, the Company spent
CZK 6,077,091 on education and development,
which was 3.29% of its payroll costs. In the
second half of 2012, altogether 1,312 attendees
of educational events were trained, i.e.,
479 employees.

Professional training and development

Social policy

Upgrading employees’ professional qualifications
and their personal development continue
to be topics on which the Human Resources
Section centres as regards the education
and development of human resources.

The Company performed its obligations under
the Collective Agreement signed for the period
from 1 January 2012 to 31 December 2013.
It was signed with Odborový svaz Transgas
[Transgas Trade Union] and Sdružení základních
organizací Odborového svazu UNIOS RWE
[Association of Branches of the UNIOS RWE Trade
Union] in the autumn of 2011. A high level
of working conditions and employee benefits will
therefore also be ensured in the following year.

Programmes intended for talented employees,
Prospects and TopTech, continue and will
be completed in 2013.
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4.5 Key Equity Interests
The year 2012, particularly the second half,
was very challenging for the RWE Group
in the Czech Republic and its controlling
company, RWE Transgas. The restructuring
of the RWE Group in the Czech Republic
was started by the completion of the
implementation of the relevant amendment
to the Energy Act, when NET4GAS, s.r.o. was
sold to RWE Gas International N.V. within the
Group. Thus, NET4GAS, s.r.o. has become
a sister company for RWE Transgas. In 2012,
RWE Transgas controlled up to 22 companies,
in which it held different equity interests, in the
Czech Republic and Slovakia. This large number
of companies, some of which had and still have
the same business lines, became untenable
in terms of efficient management.
RWE therefore proceeded to an extensive project
for the restructuring of its Czech group, which also
entailed decisions to divest certain assets and/or
decisions on the entry of a strategic investor
into a regulated line of business (natural gas
distribution). The basis for the future operation
of the RWE Group in the Czech Republic is the
allocation of its companies to four business
segments: natural gas and electricity sales; natural
gas storage; distribution, and operation and
maintenance of networks; and electricity and heat
generation. The establishment of a new company,
RWE Česká republika a.s., which would take
over the steering role in the RWE Group in the
Czech Republic at the beginning of 2013, was also
related to the above developments. RWE Transgas
will therefore become a purely trading company
pursuing natural gas wholesale.
As part of the ongoing restructuring
of the RWE Group in the Czech Republic,
RWE Transgas also sold, to its sister company
RWE Grid Holding, a.s., its subsidiary company
RWE Distribuční služby, s.r.o., which is
responsible for the servicing and maintenance
of regional distribution systems, because
RWE Grid Holding, a.s. would become the

umbrella company covering RWE’s natural gas
distribution operations in the Czech Republic. All
four distribution companies that are owned by the
regional gas companies as at 31 December 2012
will also be sold to RWE Grid Holding, a.s.
In December 2012, a 90% equity interest
in RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o., whose core
business is natural gas storage, was sold
to RWE Česká republika a.s. The remaining
10% were sold in January 2013. In 2012,
RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o. successfully completed
the expansion of storage capacity in its
Třanovice underground gas storage facility.
Equity interests in RWE Zákaznické služby, s.r.o.,
and RWE Gas Slovensko, s.r.o. were also sold
to RWE Česká republika a.s. The transfer of the
equity interest in RWE Gas Slovensko, s.r.o.
had not yet been registered in the Commercial
Register as at 31 December 2012.
The remaining equity interests in
KA Contracting ČR s.r.o., RWE Interní služby, s.r.o.
and RWE Key Account CZ, s.r.o., have been
retained by RWE Transgas and their positioning
within the business segments of the RWE Group
in the Czech Republic will be subject to continued
restructuring in 2013.
Equity interests in the regional gas companies
were also sold to the parent company,
RWE Gas International N.V. However, these
companies no longer sell natural gas only; they are
also very active in electricity sales. These companies’
growing electricity market shares are very important
in particular in view of their continuously shrinking
shares of the natural gas market.
A decision to effect a merger
by acquisition of RWE Plynoprojekt, s.r.o. with
KA Contracting ČR s.r.o. was also taken in 2012.
A business segment centred on renewable
electricity generation and heat generation and
sales has emerged from the combination of these
two companies.

RWE Transgas
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4.6 Environmental Protection and Occupational Health and Safety
Environmental protection is one of RWE Transgas’s
key priorities. This is borne out by, among
other things, assessments on a regular basis
of the Company’s compliance with legal
requirements in this area. They are carried out
through several types of checks, site inspections
and internal audits, which the Company uses
as one of the tools for reviewing corporate social
responsibility in occupational health and safety
and environmental protection.
Due to the nature of its business, the negative
impact of RWE Transgas on the environment is very
limited. The Company almost exclusively carries
out administrative and commercial activities, which
generate a very low amount of waste. In 2012,
it did not produce any hazardous waste at all,
and its energy consumption, which is continuously
decreasing, was proportionate to the operation
of its office buildings. As part of an environmental
profile analysis, all of the above aspects are
thoroughly monitored and reflected in the indexes
for the RWE international group, such as the
Dow Jones Sustainability Index and the Carbon
Disclosure Project. In the second half of 2012,
the Company started co-operation with the
Business Leaders Forum non-profit organisation
and Charles University’s Faculty of Sciences in the
CSR Ambassadors project. The purpose of the
CSR project was to formulate an environmental
strategy, which would continue to be developed
in the coming years, for responsible business.
In 2012, the implemented environmental
management system was subjected
to an independent audit by RWE AG, which
stated that the EMS was operable in line with
the standards of ISO 14001 to the full extent.

Occupational Health and Safety (OHS)
“Safety First” is the motto of the OHS scheme,
which in the case of our Company is not only
a phrase; it perfectly encapsulates the fact that

the entire area of OHS is at the top of the list
of priorities of RWE Transgas and the RWE Group
companies in the Czech Republic. The related
measures, targeted at employees and suppliers,
have become an integral part of decision-making
and communication and are being implemented
at all levels of the organisation. In the spirit
of continuous improvements, the Company
is devising increasingly effective instruments
for identifying and eliminating risks and for
preventing occupational injuries. These primarily
include managers’ site inspections on a regular
basis and thorough investigation of occupational
injuries and near-misses, where we seek to identify
the root causes and apply remedial measures.
In 2012, the key objective was to put
a health management system in place within
the RWE Group in the Czech Republic and to unify
the standard and above-standard care provided
to employees. The basis for the development
of this system was replacement of the providers
of occupational medicine services, whereby
TeamPrevent-Prepo, s.r.o. became the exclusive
partner. Independent doctors who had previously
provided their services to us separately were
included in its network of contract suppliers.
Despite all our efforts, 2012 saw a slight increase
in the number of employee road accidents
on business trips. The Company decided
to allocate funds to the Drive Safe project for the
following period; under the scheme, employees
take safe driving courses, including an up-front
assessment of their driving skills by a specialist,
who then gives them his feedback. Starting
in the second half of 2012, employees can test
their driving skills at training grounds. The year
2012 was the most successful year so far in terms
of the number of managers’ site inspections
geared towards safe behaviour and dangerous
situations. All managers, including the Company’s
senior management, who want to set an example
and show their interest in the safety and condition
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of the Company’s workplaces, participate in the
site inspections and interviews with employees.
The LTIF (Lost Time Injury Frequency, i.e.,
the incidence of occupational injuries resulting
in incapacity for work for more than one day per
million hours worked) rate continues to be the
main indicator of the sophistication of corporate
culture in occupational health and safety. The past

year 2012 was successful for the Company:
no injury resulting in incapacity for work for more
than one day occurred, and we registered only
five minor injuries.
Keeping a zero accident rate all the time continues
to be the Company’s objective. Everybody should
go home as healthy as they arrived in the morning.

4.7 Subsequent Events
Background
The Company entered the new calendar year
under a new name. As of 1 January 2013, the
Company carries on business under the name
RWE Supply & Trading CZ, a.s. In January 2013,
the change of the name was also reflected in the
business name of the organisational unit that
the Company has in Slovakia, which is now called
RWE Supply & Trading CZ, a.s. organizačná zložka.

Gas procurement and transmission
Gazprom export LLC has challenged, in the
commercial court in Vienna, the arbitral award
delivered in the dispute between Gazprom export
LLC and the Company over the minimum
take-or-pay obligation, whereby Gazprom export
LLC’s claims had been dismissed to the full extent
and an obligation to reimburse the full costs of the
arbitration had been imposed on that company.

With effect as of 1 April 2013, the last agreement
on the transit transmission of natural gas, entered
into with Gazprom export LLC, was assigned
to NET4GAS, s.r.o.

Human resources
With effect as of 1 January 2013, the
majority of employees were transferred to
RWE Česká republika a.s. by way of an assignment
of rights and obligations under Section 338 et seq.
of the Labour Code. Thus, the Company retained
only employees working in Supply & Wholesale
as of January 2013.

Key equity interests
The process of the restructuring of the RWE Group
in the Czech Republic continued in early 2013.
In January 2013, the Company sold the remaining
10% equity interest in RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o.
to RWE Česká republika a.s.

4.8 Outlook
In the first half of 2013, the Company plans
to complete the process of its restructuring.
The Company will sell its remaining equity
interests in RWE Interní služby, s.r.o.,
RWE Key Account CZ, s.r.o., KA Contracting ČR s.r.o.
and KA Contracting SK, s.r.o. to companies in the
RWE Group. The Company’s objective is to retain

its leading position on the natural gas wholesale
market in the Czech Republic.
An arbitration concerning a review of the pricing
conditions for natural gas supply is currently
under way between the Company and Gazprom
export LLC. The Company expects the outcome
of this arbitration in the first half of 2013.

RWE Transgas
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5.1 Financial Statements for the Period of Six Months Ended 31 December 2012
BALANCE SHEET (in thousand Czech crowns)
31. 12. 2012
Ref.

ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS

88,467,529

B.

Fixed assets

11,181,035

Intangible fixed assets

-

1.

Research & development

1.

Land

2.

Constructions

3.

Equipment

4.
5.

B.

I.

B.

I.

B.

II.

B.

II.

6.
B.

III.

B.

III.

I.

C.

I.

C.

II.

C.

II.

C.

III.

C.

III.

C.

IV.

C.

IV.

D.

I.

D.

I.

(858,131)

87,609,398

131,786,350

(120,231)

11,060,804

34,156,269

-

-

53

-

-

-

53

174,168

(120,231)

53,937

529,663

4,576

-

4,576

15,994

-

-

-

422,805

169,574

(120,231)

49,343

73,207

Other tangible fixed assets

-

-

-

956

Tangible fixed assets in the course of construction

8

-

8

16,691

Advances paid for tangible fixed assets

10

-

10

10

11,006,867

-

11,006,867

33,626,553

1.

Investments in subsidiaries

-

-

-

15,992,113

2.

Investments in associates

-

-

-

4,900

3.

Other long-term investments in securities

6,867

-

6,867

7,040

4.

Intra-group loans – subsidiaries and controlling
parties, associates

11,000,000

-

11,000,000

17,622,500

C.
C.

Net

Long-term investments

Provision

30. 06. 2012
Net

Tangible fixed assets

Gross

Current assets

76,914,188

(737,900)

76,176,288

97,197,348

Inventories

16,077,538

(737,900)

15,339,638

16,131,114

220

-

220

12,386,759

1.

Raw materials

2.

Finished goods

13,225,260

(737,900)

12,487,360

3.

Prepayments for inventory

2,852,058

-

2,852,058

3,744,355

Long-term receivables

7,481,121

-

7,481,121

5,022,132

7,481,121

-

7,481,121

5,022,132

49,015,679

-

49,015,679

72,141,696

3,682,117

-

3,682,117

1,084,037

30,523,854

-

30,523,854

58,869,527

122

-

122

12,380

1.

Deferred tax asset
Short-term receivables

1.

Trade receivables

2.

Receivables – subsidiaries / controlling parties

3.

Taxes and state subsidies receivable

4.

Short-term advances paid

5.

Estimated receivables

407,372

-

407,372

254,011

12,749,709

-

12,749,709

7,672,405

6.

Other receivables

1,652,505

-

1,652,505

4,249,336

Financial assets

3,902,406

4,339,850

-

4,339,850

1.

Cash in hand

3

-

3

47

2.

Cash at bank

1,836,524

-

1,836,524

1,230,065

3.

Short-term investments

2,503,323

-

2,503,323

2,672,294

372,306

-

372,306

432,733

328,147

-

328,147

329,270

44,159

-

44,159

103,463

Prepayments and accrued income
1.

Prepaid expenses

2.

Accrued income

RWE Transgas
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BALANCE SHEET – continued (in thousand Czech crowns)
Ref.

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

A.
A.

I.

A.

I.

A.

II.

A.

II.

A.

III.

A.

III.

A.

1.

31. 12. 2012

30. 06. 2012

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

87,609,398

131,786,350

Equity

38,014,539

90,464,924

Share capital

29,240,308

29,240,308

Share capital

29,240,308

29,240,308

1,116,196

11,570,678

48,503

368

Capital contributions
1.

Other capital contributions

2.

Assets and liabilities revaluation

1,067,693

11,570,310

Reserve fund and other reserves

3,866,087

1,456,200

Legal reserve fund

3,866,087

1,456,200

V.

Profit for the current period

3,791,948

48,197,738

Liabilities

49,457,075

41,237,138

B.

I.

Provisions

19,846,279

15,783,757

B.

I.

Other provisions

19,846,279

15,783,757

B.

II.

1,792

2,624

B.

II.

B.

III.

B.

III.

1.

B.

B.

IV.

B.

IV.

C.

I.

C.

I.

1.

Long-term liabilities
1.

Trade payables
Short-term liabilities

1.

Trade payables

2.

Liabilities – subsidiaries / controlling parties

3.

Liabilities to employees

4.

Liabilities for social security and health insurance

5.

Taxes and state subsidies payable

6.

Short-term advances received

7.

Estimated payables

8.

Other payables
Bank loans & overdrafts

1.

Short-term bank loans and overdrafts
Accruals and deferred income

1.

Accruals

2.

Deferred income

1,792

2,624

29,580,367

25,450,757

870,167

1,467,678

11,270,463

7,590,509

22,515

24,477

8,870

10,758

663,145

5,376

44,361

74,565

14,696,737

11,534,380

2,004,109

4,743,014

28,637

-

28,637

-

137,784

84,288

803

19,800

136,981

64,488
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INCOME STATEMENT (in thousand Czech crowns)
Accounting period

Ref.

DESCRIPTION
II.
II.

Sales of production

91,989,924

85,867,167

Sales of own products and services

91,799,523

89,331,334

2.

Change in inventory of finished goods and work in progress
Cost of sales

1.

Raw materials and consumables

2.

Services

+

Added value

C.
C.

for period
of six months
ended
30. 6. 2012

1.

B.
B.

for period
of six months
ended
31. 12. 2012

190,401

(3,464,167)

101,710,308

91,953,754

98,325,061

88,255,470

3,385,247

3,698,284

(9,720,384)

(6,086,587)

Staff costs

252,606

237,743

1.

Wages and salaries

191,551

169,966

2.

Emoluments of board members

3.

Social security and health insurance costs

4.

1,470

1,260

51,158

57,636
8,881

Other social costs

8,427

D.

Taxes and charges

13,149

(966)

E.

Depreciation of fixed assets

25,155

28,018

Sale of fixed assets and raw materials

542,356

10,579

III.
III.

1.

F.
F.

1.

G.

Sale of fixed assets

542,356

10,579

Net book value of fixed assets and raw materials sold

538,144

4,659

Net book value of fixed assets sold

538,144

4,659

4,152,322

898,729

Increase in operating provisions
IV.

H.

Other operating income

100,907

8,577

Other operating charges

4,813

14,383

(14,063,310)

(7,249,997)

18,406,402

53,320,707

*

Operating result

VI.

Income from sales of securities and shares
Securities and shares sold

5,663,540

75,000

VII.

Income from long-term investments

2,044,415

692,542

Income from investments in subsidiaries and associates

2,043,926

461,124

489

231,418

J.

VII. 1.
2.
IX.
L.

Income from investments in other securities
Gain on revaluation of securities and derivatives

5,191,544

7,337,034

Loss on revaluation of securities and derivatives

5,574,999

7,969,357

663,319

600,855

X.

Interest income

XI.

Other financial income

6,071,617

7,922,499

*

Financial result

15,396,269

54,083,825

Tax on profit or loss on ordinary activities

(2,458,989)

(1,363,910)

– deferred

(2,458,989)

(1,363,910)

N.

Interest expense

O.

Other financial expense

Q.
Q.

1.

32,945

41,129

6,433,690

8,140,672

**

Profit or loss on ordinary activities after taxation

3,791,948

48,197,738

***

Net profit for the financial period

3,791,948

48,197,738

***

Net profit before taxation

1,332,959

46,833,828
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Statement of changes in shareholder´s equity
Six month period ended 31 December 2012

As at 1 January 2012

Share
capital
(CZK’000)

Legal
reserve fund
(CZK’000)

Capital funds
(CZK’000)

Retained
earnings
(CZK’000)

Total
(CZK’000)

29,240,308

988,629

44,435,498

9,351,408

84,015,843

Revaluation reserve – Financial investments

-

-

(32,864,820)

-

(32,864,820)

Contributions to reserve fund

-

467,571

-

(467,571)

-

Dividends paid

-

-

-

(8,883,837)

(8,883,837)

Net profit for the six month period
As at 30 June 2012
Spin-off effect of the transferred assets
As at 1 July 2012

-

-

-

48,197,738

48,197,738

29,240,308

1,456,200

11,570,678

48,197,738

90,464,924

-

-

48,135

-

48,135

29,240,308

1,456,200

11,618,813

48,197,738

90,513,059
(10,502,617)

Revaluation reserve – Financial investments

-

-

(10,502,617)

-

Contributions to reserve fund

-

2,409,887

-

(2,409,887)

-

Dividends paid

-

-

-

(45,787,851)

(45,787,851)

Net profit for the six month period
As at 31 December 2012

-

-

-

3,791,948

3,791,948

29,240,308

3,866,087

1,116,196

3,791,948

38,014,539
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Cash flow statement
Six month period ended 31 December 2012
Six month
period ended 31
December 2012
(CZK’000)

Six month
period ended
30 June 2012
(CZK’000)

1,332,959

46,833,828

25,155

28,018

Cash flows from operating activities
Net profit on ordinary activities before tax
A.1

Adjustments for non-cash movements

A.1.1

Depreciation and amortisation of fixed assets

A.1.2

Changes in provisions

4,152,322

898,729

A.1.3

Profit from disposal of fixed assets

(12,747,074)

(53,251,627)

A.1.4

Dividend and profit distribution income

(2,044,415)

(692,542)

A.1.5

Net interest expense / (income)

(630,374)

(559,726)

A.1.6

Other non-cash movements

A*

Net cash flow from operating activities before tax and changes in working capital

A.2

Working capital changes

A.2.1

Changes in receivables and prepayments and accrued income

A.2.2

Changes in short-term payables, accrued expenses and deferred income

A.2.3

Changes in inventories

A**

Net cash flow from operating activities before tax

A.3
A.4
A.6
A***

(167,740)

218,204

(10,079,167)

(6,525,116)

26,159,307

(36,206,260)

3,432,810

(4,065,131)

615,916

3,464,167

20,128,866

(43,332,340)

Interest paid

(51,769)

(23,579)

Interest received

720,987

559,180

Dividends and profit distribution received

489

7,174,190

Net cash flow from operating activities

20,798,573

(35,622,549)

Cash flows from investing activities
B.1

Acquisition of fixed assets

B.2

Proceeds from the sale of fixed assets

B.3

Loans to related parties

B***

Net cash flow from investing activities

(44,185)

(749,346)

18,412,117

53,331,286

-

(435,000)

18,367,932

52,146,940

(3,200,832)

(3,300,000)

Cash flows from financing activities
C.1

Changes in long- and short-term liabilities

C.2

Changes in equity

C.2.1

Dividends paid

C***

Net cash flow from financing activities
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year

(45,787,851)

(8,883,837)

(48,988,683)

(12,183,837)

(9,822,178)

4,340,554

4,231,958

(108,596)

(5,590,220)

4,231,958
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5.2 Notes to the Financial Statements
Six month period ended 31 December 2012

1 General information
1.1 Introductory information about the Company
RWE Transgas, a.s. (“the Company”) was incorporated on 18 June 2001 and has its registered office
in Prague 10 - Strašnice, Limuzská 12/3135, Czech Republic. The Company’s primary business activity
is trade with natural gas in accordance with the Act. No. 458/2000 Coll. on conditions for undertaking
the business and for the execution of state administration in the energy sector and on amendments
to certain acts. Identification number of the Company is 264 60 815.
The members of the Board of directors as at 31 December 2012 were as follows:
Name

Position

Martin Friedrich Herrmann

Chairman

Axel Gerhardy

Vice-Chairman

Tomáš Varcop

Member

Wolfgang Peters

Member

The members of the Supervisory board as at 31 December 2012 were as follows:
Name

Position

Rolf Martin Schmitz

Chairman

Rolf Pohlig

Vice-Chairman

Patrik Bauer

Member

Michal Pech

Member

František Čech

Member

Filip Thon

Member

Thomas Jan Hejcman

Member

Andreas Günter Zetzsche

Member

František Kolátor

Member

Axel Gerhardy was appointed on the position of the Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors
on 11 July 2012.

Note
The financial statements have been prepared in the Czech language and in English. In all matters of interpretation of information, views
or opinions, the Czech version of the financial statements takes precedence over the English version.
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The Supervisory Board discussed the resignation of Rolf Pohlig from the position of the Member
and Vice-Chairman of the Supervisory Board during the meeting held on 21 November 2012 and, based
on his request, approved the termination of his function with effective date of 31 December 2012.
Resignation of Rolf Pohlig from the position of the Member and the Vice-Chairman of the Supervisory
Board with effective date of 31 December 2012 has not been recorded in the Commercial register
as at the date of preparation of the financial statements.
The Company is organised as follows:
The General Meeting is the supreme body of the Company. The Board of Directors is the body governing the
Company’s activities and acting on its behalf. The Supervisory Board is the controlling body of the Company.
Governance of the Company is divided into four departments titled as follows:
Strategy & Communication, Finance, Supply & Wholesale and National Sales. These departments
are managed by the relevant members of the Board of Directors.
On 14 November 2007 the Company concluded a profit transfer agreement with its subsidiary
RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o. Based on this agreement RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o. is committed to transfer
its annual profit after contribution to legal reserve fund to the Company. The Company is required
to settle a loss of RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o. that could not be settled from the legal reserve fund or other
available funds of RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o.
On 4 October 2010 the Company concluded a profit transfer agreement with its subsidiary
RWE Key Account CZ, s.r.o. Based on this agreement, RWE Key Account CZ, s.r.o. is committed
to transfer its annual profit after contribution to legal reserve fund to the Company. The Company
is required to settle a loss of RWE Key Account CZ, s.r.o. that could not be settled from the legal reserve
fund or other available funds of RWE Key Account CZ, s.r.o.
Accounting policy for profit/loss transfer is described in Note 2.7 Receivables.

1.2 Project of spin-off and subsequent merger
The Company participated in the project of spin-off with subsequent merger, taking over certain assets
of RWE Plynoprojekt, s.r.o.
On 24 April 2012, the spin-off with subsequent merger and transfer of part of RWE Plynoprojekt, s.r.o.
(“the Spun-off Company”) assets to RWE Transgas, a.s. (“the Successor Company”) was approved with the
decisive date of 1 July 2012. The reason for the spin-off with subsequent merger was an overall restructuring
of the existing activities performed by the Company within the RWE Group in the Czech Republic.
The Spun-off Company was not dissolved as a result of the project of spin-off and subsequent merger.
The Successor Company acquired tangible fixed assets and low value tangible fixed assets from
the Spun-off Company in the net book value of CZK 48,135,000. The value of the merged assets
is credited against other capital contributions in the Successor Company’s financial statements.
The resolution of the Municipal court in Prague concerning the proposal to register the spin-off with
subsequent merger in the Commercial register became legally effective on 20 June 2012. The project
was registered in the Commercial register on 1 July 2012.
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The comparative period for the six month period ended 30 June 2012 as presented in the financial
statements for the six month period ended 31 December 2012 was not adjusted and represents solely
the information of the Company prior to the spin-off and is therefore not comparable without taking
into consideration the effect of the spin-off, which is described in the table below.
30. 6. 2012
Ref.

ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS

B.

Fixed asset

1. 7. 2012

Gross
(CZK’000)

Provision
(CZK’000)

Net
(CZK’000)

Merger
impact
(CZK’000)

133,114,743

(1,328,393)

131,786,350

48,135

131,834,485

34,836,562

(680,293)

34,156,269

48,135

34,204,404

142,223

(142,170)

53

-

53

1,067,786

(538,123)

529,663

48,135

577,798

Net
(CZK’000)

B.

I.

Intangible fixed asset

B.

II.

Tangible fixed asset

B.

III.

Long-term financial asset

33,626,553

-

33,626,553

-

33,626,553

C.

Current asset

97,845,448

(648,100)

97,197,348

-

97,197,348

C.

I.

Inventories

16,779,214

(648,100)

16,131,114

-

16,131,114

C.

II.

Long-term receivables

5,022,132

-

5,022,132

-

5,022,132

C.

III.

Short-term receivables

72,141,696

-

72,141,696

-

72,141,696

3,902,406

-

3,902,406

-

3,902,406

432,733

-

432,733

-

432,733

30. 6. 2012
(CZK’000)

Transfer of the net profit/
loss for the six month period
ended as at 30. 6. 2012
(CZK’000)

Merger
impact
(CZK’000)

1. 7. 2012
(CZK’000)

131,786,350

-

48,135

131,834,485

Equity

90,464,924

-

48,135

90,513,059

-

-

29,240,308

C.

IV.

Short-term financial asset

D.

I.

Prepayment and accrued income

Ref.

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

A.
A.

I.

Share capital

29,240,308

A.

II.

Capital contributions

11,570,678

-

48,135

11,618,813

A.

III.

Reserve funds and other reserves

1,456,200

-

-

1,456,200

A.

IV.

Retained earnings / accumulated
losses

-

48,197,738

-

48,197,738

Liabilities

41,237,138

-

-

41,237,138

B.

I.

Provisions

15,783,757

-

-

15,783,757

B.

II.

Long-term liabilities

2,624

-

-

2,624

B.

III.

Short-term liabilities

25,450,757

-

-

25,450,757

C.

I.

Accruals and deferred income

84,288

-

-

84,288

B.

52

FINANCIAL PART
Notes to the Financial Statements

2. Accounting policies
2.1 Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
in the Czech Republic and have been prepared under the historical cost convention except as disclosed below.
In accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in the Czech Republic, the Company does
not prepare consolidated financial statements since it is itself a controlled entity and it is included
in the consolidated financial statements of its ultimate parent company, RWE Aktiengesellschaft with
the registered office in Opernplatz 1, 45128 Essen, Germany, preparation of its consolidated financial
statements adopts the International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by European Union.

2.2 Intangible fixed assets
All intangible assets with a useful life longer than one year and a unit cost of more than CZK 60 thousand
are treated as intangible fixed assets.
Intangible fixed assets are amortised applying the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives.

2.3 Tangible fixed assets
All tangible assets with a useful life longer than one year and a unit cost of more than CZK 10 thousand
are treated as tangible fixed assets.
Repairs and maintenance expenditures of tangible fixed assets are expensed as incurred.
Technical improvements of tangible fixed assets exceeding CZK 40 thousand per year are capitalised.
Acquired tangible fixed assets are initially recorded at cost, which includes all costs related with
its acquisition.
Tangible fixed assets, except for land which is not depreciated, are depreciated applying
the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives as follows:
Tangible fixed asset

Estimated useful life

Buildings and constructions
Plant, machinery and equipment

30–50 years
4–30 years

Furniture and fittings

4–8 years

Motor vehicles

5–8 years

The depreciation plan is updated during the useful life of the tangible fixed assets based
on the expected useful life.
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2.4 Investments in subsidiaries and investments in associates
Investments in subsidiaries represent ownership interests in enterprises that are controlled
by the Company (“the subsidiary”).
Investments in associates represent ownership interests in enterprises over which the Company
has significant influence, but not control (“the associate”).
Investments in subsidiaries and associates are accounted for by the equity method of accounting.
Under this method, the investment is initially recorded at cost and the carrying amount is increased
or decreased to recognise the investor’s share of the equity of the subsidiary or the associate as at the
balance sheet date. Revaluation of investment by using the equity method of accounting is recorded
through the Company’s equity.

2.5 Other securities and investments
The Company classifies securities and investments, other than investments in subsidiaries
and associates as trading, available-for-sale and held-to maturity.
Securities that are acquired principally for the purpose of generating profits from short-term
(maximum of 1 year period) fluctuations in price are classified as trading investments and included
in current assets.
Investments intended to be held for an indefinite period of time, which may be sold in response
to liquidity requirements, are classified as available-for-sale. These investments are included
in non-current assets unless management has the express intention of holding the investment
for less than 12 months from the balance sheet date, in which case they are included in current assets.
Management determines the appropriate classification of investments as at the time of purchase
and the classification is reviewed on a regular basis.
All securities and investments are initially recorded at cost, including transaction costs. Held-to-maturity
investments are subsequently accounted for at amortised cost. Other investments are subsequently
accounted for at fair value. The fair value is determined as the market value of the securities as at the
balance sheet date. Measurement of non-traded securities is based on qualified management estimates.
Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of trading instruments are included in the
income statement in the period in which they arise. Unrealised gains and losses arising from changes
in fair value of available-for-sale investments are recognised as a movement in equity and recognised
into the income statement on realisation or when permanently impaired.
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2.6 Inventories
Inventories of gas, stored in the underground storages, are treated as finished goods. Acquisition
cost of gas includes transport and storage costs.
Total inventory of gas in the underground storages is valued based on the actual status of the
volume of gas in technical units expressed in financial terms. Gas injected is valued using the average
acquisition cost in the month of addition and disposals of the natural gas during the course of the year
(drawings, recalculations due to temperature changes, operating losses) are valued using the average
cost of gas inventory in the underground storages, determined as at the last day of the previous month.
A provision for impairment is established when the carrying value of inventory is greater than its net
realisable amount.
Short-term and long-term advances paid for gas purchases are classified as Prepayments for inventory.

2.7 Receivables
Receivables are stated at nominal value less a provision for doubtful amounts. A provision for doubtful
amounts is created on the basis of an ageing analysis and individual evaluation of the credit worthiness
of the customers. Receivables from related parties have not been provided for.
Profit transfers (see Note 1 General information) are recognized within estimated receivables against
income from investments in subsidiaries and associates. Loss transfers are recognized within estimated
payables against loss on investments. Estimated receivables/payables are cleared in subsequent
accounting period (by profit transfer/payment of losses).
The right to profit transfer or the obligation to settle a loss arises only when the subsidiary’s financial
statements are approved by its supreme body.

2.8 Cash and cash equivalents
The Company has prepared a Cash flow statement using the indirect method.
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, stamps and vouchers and cash in banks, including
bank overdrafts.
Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments that can be exchanged for a predictable
amount of cash and no significant changes of value over time are expected. Cash equivalents are,
for example, deposits with a maturity of less than 3 months from the date of acquisition and liquid debt
securities traded in public markets.
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The Company uses so-called cash-pooling within the group. A receivable (liability) that arises from
cash-pooling is presented in the Cash flow statement as a part of the item Cash and Cash equivalents
if it is due within three months after the balance sheet date.
If the liability arising from cash-pooling represents a form of financing then it is not presented
in the Cash flow statement as a part of the item Cash and cash equivalents.
Other deposits outside of cash-pooling within the group which are due within three months after
the balance sheet date are not presented as a part of the item Cash and cash equivalents.

2.9 Foreign currency translation
Transactions denominated in a foreign currency are translated and recorded at the fixed exchange
rate determined by the Company as at the first day of the month.
Cash, receivables and liabilities balances denominated in foreign currencies have been translated
at the exchange rate published by the Czech National Bank as at the balance sheet date. All exchange
gains and losses on cash, receivables and liabilities balances are recorded in the income statement.
The Company treats advances paid for the acquisition of inventories as receivables and therefore these assets
are translated at the exchange rate published by the Czech National Bank as at the balance sheet date.

2.10 Derivative financial instruments
Derivative financial instruments including foreign exchange contracts, currency and interest rate swaps
and other derivative financial instruments are initially recognised on the balance sheet at cost and
subsequently are re-measured at their fair value. Fair values are obtained from quoted market prices,
discounted cash flow models and option pricing models as appropriate. All derivatives are presented
in other receivables or in other payables when their fair value is positive or negative, respectively.
Certain derivatives embedded in other financial instruments are not treated as separate derivatives.
Changes in the fair value of derivatives held for trading are included in gain or loss on revaluation
of securities and derivatives.

2.11 Revenue recognition
The Company recognizes as revenue mainly income from the sale of gas, related services and changes
in gas inventories stored in the underground storages. Cost of sales includes mainly the cost of gas
purchases, gas transportation and gas storage in the rented underground storages.
Sales of services are recognised as at the date the services are rendered and are stated net of discounts
and value added tax.
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2.12 Provisions
The Company recognises provisions relating to probable future obligations or expenditures, when
the purpose of the obligations or expenditures is known but the precise amount, or the time when
the obligation or expenditure will crystallise, is not known. However, provisions are not created
for future operating expenditures or for expenditures directly related to future revenue transactions.
The Company recognises a provision for its future income tax payable which is presented net
of advances paid for the income tax. If advances paid are higher than the estimated income tax payable
the difference is recognised as a short-term receivable.

2.13 Employment benefits
Regular contributions are made to the state to fund the national pension plan. The Company
also provides contributions to defined contribution plans operated by independent pension funds
and capital life insurance. The contribution for pension and life insurance is recognized as an expense.

2.14 Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised on all temporary differences between the carrying amount of an asset
or liability in the balance sheet and its tax base. Deferred tax asset is recognised if it is probable
that sufficient future taxable profit will be available against which the asset can be utilised.

2.15 Related parties
The Company’s related parties are considered to be the following:
•	Parties, which directly or indirectly control the Company, their subsidiaries and associates;
•	Parties, which have directly or indirectly significant influence on the Company;
•	Members of the Company’s or parent company’s statutory and supervisory boards
and management and parties close to such members, including entities in which they have
a controlling or significant influence; and/or
•	Subsidiaries and associates and joint-venture companies.
Material transactions and outstanding balances with related parties are disclosed in Notes 16 and 17.

2.16 Subsequent events
The effects of events, which occurred between the balance sheet date and the date of preparation
of the financial statements, are recognised in the financial statements in the case that these events
provide further evidence of conditions that existed as at the balance sheet date.
Where significant events occur subsequent to the balance sheet date but prior to the preparation of the
financial statements, which are indicative of conditions that arose subsequent to the balance sheet date,
the effects of these events are disclosed, but are not themselves recognised in the financial statements.
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3 Intangible fixed assets
Cost

Research & Development

1 July 2012
(CZK’000)

Additions
(CZK’000)

Disposals
(CZK’000)

31 December 2012
(CZK’000)

3,964

-

(3,964)

-

Software

126,067

-

(126,067)

-

Royalties

12,192

-

(12,192)

-

142,223

-

(142,223)

-

1 July 2012
(CZK’000)

Additions
(CZK’000)

Disposals
(CZK’000)

31 December 2012
(CZK’000)

(3,911)

(53)

3,964

-

(126,067)

-

126,067

-

Total

Accumulated amortisation

Research & development
Software
Royalties
Total
Net book value

(12,192)

-

12,192

-

(142,170)

(53)

142,223

-

53

-

Cost
1 January 2012
(CZK’000)

Additions
(CZK’000)

Disposals
(CZK’000)

30 June 2012
(CZK’000)

3,964

-

-

3,964

Software

126,067

-

-

126,067

Royalties

13,541

-

(1,349)

12,192

143,572

-

(1,349)

142,223

1 January 2012
(CZK’000)

Additions
(CZK’000)

Disposals
(CZK’000)

30 June 2012
(CZK’000)

(3,847)

(64)

-

(3,911)

(126,067)

-

-

(126,067)

Research & Development

Total

Accumulated amortisation

Research & development
Software
Royalties
Total
Net book value

(13,458)

(83)

1,349

(12,192)

(143,372)

(147)

1,349

(142,170)

200

Intangible fixed assets were sold to RWE Česká republika a.s. during the six month period ended
on 31 December 2012 (see Note 17 – Related party transactions).
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4 Tangible fixed assets
Cost
1 July 2012
(CZK’000)

Additions
(CZK’000)

Transfers
(CZK’000)

Disposals
(CZK’000)

31 December 2012
(CZK’000)

15,994

-

-

(11,418)

4,576

Buildings, halls and
other constructions

739,509

-

46,960

(786,469)

-

Equipment

372,651

-

9,038

(212,115)

169,574

956

-

70

(1,026)

-

Tangible fixed assets
in the course
of construction

16,691

39,385

(56,068)

-

8

Advances paid for
tangible fixed assets

10

-

-

-

10

1,145,811

39,385

-

(1,011,028)

174,168

1 July 2012
(CZK’000)

Additions
(CZK’000)

Transfers
(CZK’000)

Disposals
(CZK’000)

31 December 2012
(CZK’000)

(270,068)

(7,249)

-

277,317

-

Land

Other tangible
fixed assets

Total

Accumulated depreciation

Buildings, halls and
other constructions
Equipment
Total
Net book value

(297,945)

(17,808)

-

195,522

(120,231)

(568,013)

(25,057)

-

472,839

(120,231)

577,798

53,937

Cost

Land

30 June 2012
(CZK’000)

Effect
of the spin-off
(CZK’000)

1 July 2012
(CZK’000)

15,994

-

15,994

Buildings, halls and other constructions

682,320

57,189

739,509

Equipment

351,815

20,836

372,651

Other tangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets in the course of construction
Advances paid for tangible fixed assets
Total

956

-

956

16,691

-

16,691

10

-

10

1,067,786

78,025

1,145,811
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Accumulated depreciation
30 June 2012
(CZK’000)

Effect
of the spin-off
(CZK’000)

1 July 2012
(CZK’000)

Buildings, halls and other constructions

(259,515)

(10,553)

(270,068)

Equipment

(278,608)

(19,337)

(297,945)

Total

(538,123)

(29,890)

(568,013)

529,663

48,135

577,798

Net book value
Cost
1 January 2012
(CZK’000)

Additions
(CZK’000)

Transfers
(CZK’000)

Disposals
(CZK’000)

30 June 2012
(CZK’000)

15,994

-

-

-

15,994

Buildings, halls and
other constructions

682,049

-

271

-

682,320

Equipment

Land

428,801

-

2,538

(79,524)

351,815

Other tangible fixed
assets

956

-

-

-

956

Tangible fixed assets
in the course
of construction

2,017

17,483

(2,809)

-

16,691

Advances paid for
tangible fixed assets

10

-

-

-

10

1,129,827

17,483

-

(79,524)

1,067,786

1 January 2012
(CZK’000)

Additions
(CZK’000)

Transfers
(CZK’000)

Disposals
(CZK’000)

30 June 2012
(CZK’000)

Buildings, halls and
other constructions

(251,669)

(7,846)

-

-

(259,515)

Equipment

(333,449)

(19,416)

-

74,257

(278,608)

Total

(585,118)

(27,262)

-

74,257

(538,123)

Total

Accumulated depreciation

Net book value

544,709

529,663

Most of the tangible fixed assets were sold to RWE Česká republika a.s. during the six month period
ended on 31 December 2012 (see Note 17 – Related party transactions).
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5 Investments in subsidiaries and investments in associates

Net
assets
(CZK’000)

Net
value of
investment
(CZK’000)

Six month
period ended
31 December 2012
dividend income and
other income
(CZK’000)

-

Cost
(CZK’000)

% of
capital

2012 net
profit
(CZK’000)

RWE Plynoprojekt, s.r.o.

126,589

100

35,352

108,358

108,358

RWE Interní služby, s.r.o.

75,000

100

57,331

142,316

142,316

-

RWE Key Account CZ, s.r.o.

55,000

100

21,736

76,736

56,0871

20,650

KA Contracting ČR s.r.o.

616,903

100

20,157

494,947

494,947

-

Total

873,492

134,576

822,357

801,708

20,650

31 December 2012
Czech entities2

	The net value of investment in RWE Key Account CZ, s.r.o. was reduced by the distributed profit of RWE Key Account CZ, s.r.o.
for the year 2012 in the amount of CZK 20,650,000.

1

	The Company intends to sell all of its subsidiaries within 12 months from the date of the issue of the financial statements, therefore
they are presented as current assets.

2

Six month
period ended
30 June 2012
dividend income
and other income
(CZK’000)

Cost
(CZK’000)

% of
capital

Six month
period ended
30 June 2012
net profit/(loss)
(CZK’000)

RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o.3

5,621,379

100

1,183,6631

15,054,6961

15,054,6961

-

RWE Plynoprojekt, s.r.o.

126,589

100

(11,649)

121,245

121,245

-

75,000

100

16,8041

101,7891

101,7891

33,624

RWE Zákaznické služby, s.r.o.

10,000

100

38,416

49,416

49,416

54,810

RWE Key Account CZ, s.r.o.

55,000

100

29,6901

84,6901

84,6901

-

616,903

100

33,7061

508,4961

508,4961

42,292

4,900

49

-1

10 0001

4,9001

-

-

-

-

-

-

330,398

7,319

100

30 June 2012

Net assets
(CZK’000)

Net value of
investment
(CZK’000)

Czech entities

RWE Interní služby, s.r.o.
3

KA Contracting ČR s.r.o.
RWE Service CZ, s.r.o.3
RWE Distribuční služby, s.r.o.

2

1

1

1

Foreign entities
RWE Gas Slovensko, s.r.o.3
Total

6,517,090

27,9361

71,7811

1,318,566

16,002,113

71,7811
15,997,013

461,124

Not audited figures as at the date of issue of the financial statements.
Share in RWE Distribuční služby, s.r.o. was sold in the accounting period of six months ended on 30 June 2012.
3	Shares in RWE Zákaznické služby, s.r.o., RWE Service CZ, s.r.o., RWE Gas Slovensko, s.r.o. and 90% of the share in RWE Gas Storage,
s.r.o. were sold in the period of six months ended 31 December 2012.
1
2
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Registered office of RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o. is in Prague 9, Prosecká 855/68.
Registered office of RWE Plynoprojekt, s.r.o. is in Prague 4 Michle, U Plynárny 223/42.
Registered office of RWE Interní služby, s.r.o. is in Prague 9, Prosecká 855/68.
Registered office of RWE Distribuční služby, s.r.o. is in Brno, Plynárenská 499/1.
Registered office of RWE Zákaznické služby, s.r.o. is in Ostrava, Plynární 2748/6.
Registered office of RWE Key Account CZ, s.r.o. is in Prague 10 – Strašnice, Limuzská 12/3135.
Registered office of RWE Gas Slovensko, s.r.o. is in Košice, Mlynská 31, the Slovak Republic.
Registered office of KA Contracting ČR s.r.o. is in Prague 1, Truhlářská 13–15.
Registered office of RWE Service CZ, s.r.o. is in Prague 10 - Strašnice, Limuzská 12/3135.
There are no differences between the percentage of ownership and the percentage of voting rights
in any subsidiary. No controlling agreements have been concluded with subsidiary undertakings.
The Company has entered into profit transfer agreements with companies RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o.
and RWE Key Account CZ, s.r.o. (see Note 1 – General information). Agreements with
RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o. and RWE Key Account CZ, s.r.o. expired on 31 December 2012. The profits
of RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o. and RWE Key Account CZ, s.r.o. for the year 2012 were transferred according
to the profit transfer agreements.
In the accounting period of six months ended on 30 June 2012 the Company sold its equity shares
in NET4GAS, s.r.o. and RWE Distribuční služby, s.r.o. within the RWE Group, bought an equity share
in KA Contracting ČR s.r.o. and became a 49% shareholder of RWE Service CZ, s.r.o.
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6 Other securities and investments
6.1 Available-for-sale investments and loans

31 December 2012

% of
capital

Nominal
value
(CZK’000)

Fair value
(CZK’000)

Acquisition
cost
(CZK’000)

Six month period ended
31 December 2012
dividend income and
profit distribution
(CZK’000)

10

1,345,071

1,701,615

562,138

2,023,276

Czech entities
RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o.1
Foreign entities
Other
Total

4,454

6,867

6,867

489

1,349,525

1,708,482

569,005

2,023,765

	Fair value of investment in RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o. represents the selling price for which the share in RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o. was sold
in January 2013. Information about the sale is disclosed in Note 22 – Subsequent Events.

1

30 June 2012

Number
of
shares

Nominal
value
(CZK’000)

Fair value
(CZK’000)

Acquisition
cost
(CZK’000)

Six month period
ended 30 June 2012
dividend income
(CZK’000)

Czech entities
Jihomoravská plynárenská, a.s.1
Severomoravská plynárenská, a.s.1
Východočeská plynárenská, a.s.1

36,778

66,200

290,142

71,725

28,885

374,378

374,378

2,241,401

457,853

182,697

28,355

28,355

140,924

52,504

19,836

Foreign entities
Other
Total

4,454

6,867

6,867

-

2,679,334

588,949

231,418

	Shares in Jihomoravská plynárenská, a.s., Severomoravská plynárenská, a.s. and Východočeská plynárenská, a.s. were sold during
the accounting period of six months ended on 31 December 2012.

1

During the accounting period and as at the balance sheet date, the Company held only available
for sale investments.
The overall impact on equity resulting from sale and revaluation of investments in the six month period
ended 31 December 2012 was negative and amounted to minus CZK 10,502,617,000 (from which
decrease resulting from sale of the subsidiaries amounted to minus CZK 11,627,582,000, increase
of fair value of available-for-sale investments by CZK 1,139,477,000 and decrease in share values
of subsidiaries using the equity method by CZK 14,512,000).
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The overall impact on equity resulting from sale and revaluation of investments in the six month
period ended 30 June 2012 was negative and amounted to CZK 32,864,820,000 (from which decrease
resulting from sale of the subsidiaries amounted to CZK 33,934,973,000 and increase in share values
of subsidiaries using the equity method amounted to CZK 1,070,153,000).
Intra-group loans include a loan to NET4GAS, s.r.o. in the amount of CZK 11,000,000,000
(as at 30 June 2012: CZK 11,000,000,000) which is due on 23 December 2021 at the latest.

7 Inventories
Neither shortage nor surplus was identified during inventory stock-count for the period of six months
ended 31 December 2012. The Company created a provision for gas stored in the underground storage
as at 31 December 2012 of CZK 737,900,000 (as at 30 June 2012: CZK 648,100,000).

8 Receivables
31 December 2012
(CZK’000)

30 June 2012
(CZK’000)

3,622,033

1,077,400

60,084

6,637

Total trade receivables

3,682,117

1,084,037

Estimated receivables

12,749,709

7,672,405

32,583,854

63,385,254

-

-

45,333,563

72,141,696

7,481,121

5,022,132

Trade receivables
– current
– overdue

Other receivables
– current
Provision for doubtful receivables
Net book value of short-term receivables
Deferred tax asset
Total long-term receivables
Total net book value of receivables

7,481,121

5,022,132

56,496,801

77,163,828

Trade receivables as at 31 December 2012 include mainly receivables for gas sales to regional gas traders.
Other receivables as at 31 December 2012 include mainly intercompany deposits in the amount
of CZK 19,800,000,000 (as at 30 June 2012: CZK 50,500,000,000), cash-pooling receivables from
RWE Group companies in the amount of CZK 3,865,354,000 (as at 30 June 2012: CZK 7,792,355,000),
from which CZK 400,000,000 (as at 30 June 2012: CZK 400,000,000) are due after more than 3 months
from the balance sheet date; the part of long-term loan payables within one year from the balance
sheet date in the amount of CZK 6,858,500,000 (as at 30 June 2012: CZK 236,000,000);
receivables from financial derivates in the amount of CZK 1,623,934,000 (as at 30 June 2012:
CZK 4,229,059,000 and short-term advances paid in the amount of CZK 407,372,000
(as at 30 June 2012: CZK 254,011,000).
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Estimated receivables as at 31 December 2012 contain mainly unbilled gas deliveries and transit fees
amounting to CZK 10,054,299,000 (as at 30 June 2012: CZK 7,622,384,000).
For analysis of deferred tax asset, see Note 14 Income tax.
Unsettled receivables have not been secured and none of them are due after more than 5 years.

9 Equity
Authorised and issued share capital
31 December 2012

Ordinary shares of CZK 800, fully paid

30 June 2012

No. of
pieces

Carrying value
(CZK’000)

No. of
pieces

Carrying value
(CZK’000)

36,550,385

29,240,308

36,550,385

29,240,308

The Company is fully owned by 100% shareholder RWE Gas International N.V., incorporated in the
Netherlands, and the ultimate parent company is RWE Aktiengesellschaft, incorporated in Germany.
The legal reserve fund is created from the profit of the Company according to law and may not
be distributed to shareholders. It may be used to offset losses only. In accordance with the relevant
articles of association and the Commercial Law, the Company creates legal reserve fund of 5%
from annual net profit, until the fund reaches 20% of the share capital.
The general meeting of the sole shareholder approved the financial statements for the period
of 6 months ended 30 June 2012 and decided about the allocation of profit earned in the period
of 6 months ended 30 June 2012 of CZK 48,197,738,000 on 27 November 2012.

10 Provisions

Opening balance as at 1 January 2012
Charge for the year
Released in the year

Other
provision
(CZK’000)

Total
(CZK’000)

13,963,128

13,963,128

3,520,410

3,520,410

-

-

Used in the year

(1,699,781)

(1,699,781)

Closing balance as at 30 June 2012

15,783,757

15,783,757

9,290,293

9,290,293

(23,755)

(23,755)

Charge for the period
Released in the period
Used in the period

(5,204,016)

(5,204,016)

Closing balance as at 31 December 2012

19,846,279

19,846,279
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As at 31 December 2012, the Company did not create any Income tax provision. For an analysis
of the current and deferred income taxes, see Note 14 Income tax.
Other provisions in the total amount of CZK 19,846,279,000 (as at 30 June 2012: CZK 15,783,757,000)
contain mainly the provision for future losses and risks arising from the long-term gas purchase
contracts and expected unfavourable trend in market prices.

11 Payables
31 December 2012
(CZK’000)

30 June 2012
(CZK’000)

870,167

1,467,678

14,696,737

11,534,380

Trade payables
– current
Estimated payables
Other payables
– current
Total short-term liabilities
Long-term trade payables
Total short-term and long-term liabilities

14,013,463

12,448,699

29,580,367

25,450,757

1,792

2,624

29,582,159

25,453,381

Estimated payables as at 31 December 2012 contain mainly accrual for unbilled gas deliveries
and transit fees in the amount of CZK 14,542,094,000 (as at 30 June 2012: CZK 11,446,376,000).
Other payables as at 31 December 2012 contain mainly cash-pooling payables to RWE Group companies (see
Note 17 – Related party transactions) of CZK 11,270,463,000 (as at 30 June 2012: CZK 7,590,509,000), from
which CZK nil (as at 30 June 2012: CZK 3,200,000,000) are due after more than 3 months from the balance
sheet date and negative fair value of derivatives in amount of CZK 1,770,306,000
(as at 30 June 2012: CZK 4,707,349,000 ), see Note 13 Derivative financial instruments.
The Company does not have any overdue payables related to social or health insurance or any other
overdue payables to tax authorities or other state institutions.
Trade and other payables have not been secured against any assets of the Company and are not due
after more than 5 years.

12 Bank loans and other borrowings
The Company has overdrafts and revolving credit lines with Citibank, ČSOB and Komerční banka,
which were not used for drawing the loans as at 30 June 2012. As at 31 December 2012 the Company
drew an overdraft in Citibank in the amount of CZK 28,637,000.
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13 Derivative financial instruments
The fair value of derivatives is presented in “Other receivables” if positive, or in “Other payables”
if negative. The derivatives can be analysed as follows:
Forward instruments
31 December 2012
Fair value
Positive
(CZK’000)

30 June 2012
Notional
amount
(CZK’000)

Negative
(CZK’000)

Fair value
Positive
(CZK’000)

Negative
(CZK’000)

Notional
amount
(CZK’000)

Currency forwards

27,162

(8,331)

1,196,147

119,066

(1,268,879)

28,147,577

Total trading
agreements

27,162

(8,331)

1,196,147

119,066

(1,268,879)

28,147,577

Swap instruments
31 December 2012

30 June 2012

Fair value

Fair value

Positive
(CZK’000)

Negative
(CZK’000)

Volume of
commodity

Positive
(CZK’000)

Negative
(CZK’000)

Volume of
commodity

Fuel oil commodity swap

572,642

(482,025)

(634,362) t

1,733,898

(1,127,614)

(1,121,859) t

Gas oil commodity swap

776,774

(643,222)

310,300 t

2,003,365

(1,627,295)

259,967 t

Coal commodity swap

147,292

(616,527)

762,682 t

196,821

(601,622)

1,014,452 t

Index commodity swap

100,064

(20,200)

(2,855) GWh

175,909

(81,938)

(3,120) GWh

Nominal amount of forward instruments and volume of commodity swap instruments represent net
volume of concluded forward and swap transactions.
Gains and losses from realised derivatives transactions:

Gains from currency derivates
Losses from currency derivates
Gains from commodity derivates
Losses from commodity derivates
Total

Six month period ended
31 December 2012
(CZK’000)

Six month period ended
30 June 2012
(CZK’000)

2,113,419

2,023,969

(1,608,153)

(998,661)

3,639,192

5,446,040

(3,594,669)

(5,012,347)

549,789

1,459,001

Changes in fair value of trading derivatives are recorded in the income statement.
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Certain derivative transactions, although providing effective economic hedges under the Company’s risk
management positions, do not qualify for hedge accounting under Czech accounting rules. Therefore,
they are presented above as trading derivatives.

14 Income tax
The income tax can be analysed as follows:

Current tax expense
Deferred tax income
Total income tax

Six month period ended
31 December 2012
(CZK’000)

Six month period ended
30 June 2012
(CZK’000)

-

-

(2,458,989)

(1,363,910)

(2,458,989)

(1,363,910)

Six month period ended
31 December 2012
(CZK’000)

Six month period ended
30 June 2012
(CZK’000)

Current tax can be analysed as follows:

Net profit before taxation
Non-taxable income
Difference between accounting
and tax depreciation
Non-tax deductible costs
Net taxable loss
Corporate income tax at 19%

1,332,959

46,833,828

(25,619,326)

(57,088,427)

11,030

698

15,499,518

4,094,515

(8,775,819)

(6,159,386)

-

-

Tax discount

-

-

Tax to be paid

-

-

The deferred tax was calculated at 19% (the rate enacted for 2011 and subsequent years).

68

FINANCIAL PART
Notes to the Financial Statements

Deferred tax asset/(liability) can be analysed as follows:
31 December 2012
(CZK’000)

30 June 2012
(CZK’000)

Difference between carrying value accounting and tax base
of fixed assets

(1,486)

(22,225)

Total deferred tax liability

(1,486)

(22,225)

3,865,394

3,076,453

Deferred tax liability arising from

Deferred tax asset arising from
Other provisions
Tax loss in the first half of year 2012 and in year 2011

1,967,904

792,155

Tax loss for the six month period
ended 31 December 2012 / 30 June 2012

1,649,309

1,175,749

Total deferred tax asset

7,482,607

5,044,357

Net deferred tax asset

7,481,121

5,022,132

15 Revenue analysis
Revenue from operating activities can be analysed as follows:
Six month period ended
31 December 2012
(CZK’000)

Six month period ended
30 June 2012
(CZK’000)

Trade with natural gas
– foreign

69,513,719

59,665,243

– domestic

18,631,339

26,083,334

3,097,458

3,058,483

Transit / services associated with transit
– foreign
– domestic
Total sales of own products and services

557,007

524,274

91,799,523

89,331,334
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16 Employees
Six month period ended
31 December 2012

Six month period ended
30 June 2012

Members of Statutory bodies who
are employees

1

1

Average number of other members
of management

17

20

Average number of other staff

468

493

Total number of employees

486

514

The Company’s management includes executive members of the Board of Directors and other directors
and managers directly reporting to them.
Management
(CZK’000)

Other staff
(CZK’000)

Total
(CZK’000)

33,449

158,102

191,551

Social security costs

823

50,335

51,158

Other social costs

158

8,269

8,427

Six month period ended 31 December 2012
Wages and salaries

Bonuses to the Board of Directors

870

-

870

Bonuses to the Supervisory Board

600

-

600

35,900

216,706

252,606

Wages and salaries

22,745

147,221

169,966

Social security costs

5,385

52,251

57,636

191

8,690

8,881

Bonuses to the Board of Directors

870

-

870

Bonuses to the Supervisory Board

390

-

390

29,581

208,162

237,743

Total staff costs
Six month period ended 30 June 2012

Other social costs

Total staff costs

Other transactions with the Company’s management and members of the Board of Directors are described
in Note 17 Related party transactions.
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17 Related party transactions
The Company was involved in the following related party transactions:
Six month period ended
31 December 2012
(CZK’000)

Six month period ended
30 June 2012
(CZK’000)

Regional gas suppliers and distribution operators of the
RWE Group (services, interest, financial instruments, gas)

669,868

939,617

RWE Aktiengesellschaft (services, financial instruments)

3,363,517

2,839,382

RWE Supply & Trading GmbH
(gas, services, financial instruments)

51,385,211

48,298,382

RWE Key Account CZ, s.r.o.
(interest, financial instruments, gas)

119,245

68,202

82,528

75,521

NET4GAS, s.r.o. (services, gas, interest)

3,689,994

4,280,682

RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o. (storage capacity, interest)

1,920,250

2,055,178

Purchases

RWE Interní služby, s.r.o. (services, interest, assets)

RWE Service CZ, s.r.o.
RWE Gas Slovensko, s.r.o. (financial instruments)
Other

18,555

-

-

9,535

9,212

10,245

61,258,380

58,576,744

Regional gas suppliers of the RWE Group

11,817,027

18,207,772

RWE Supply & Trading GmbH

Total purchases
Sales of natural gas

65,611,941

55,250,724

RWE Key Account CZ, s.r.o.

1,995,623

2,228,454

RWE Gas Slovensko, s.r.o.

3,832,053

4,366,577

83,256,644

80,053,527

593,737

756,709

4,499,921

2,553,907

Total sales of natural gas
Other sales
Regional gas suppliers and distribution operators of the
RWE Group (interest, services, financial instruments)
RWE Aktiengesellschaft
(interest, services, financial instruments)

321,988

319,425

RWE Supply & Trading GmbH
(financial instruments, services)

NET4GAS, s.r.o. (storage capacity, services)

6,448,608

12,028,808

RWE Gas International N.V. (sale of ownership interests)

2,257,223

52,248,986

-

1,071,721

16,685,826

-

RWE Grid Holding, a.s. (sale of ownership interest)
RWE Česká republika a.s.
(sale of fixed assets and ownership interests)
Other
Total other sales

254,172

253,169

31,061,475

69,232,725

RWE Transgas
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The following related party balances were outstanding as at:
31 December 2012
(CZK’000)

30 June 2012
(CZK’000)

1,552,570

355,289

Trade receivables
Regional gas suppliers and distribution operators of the RWE Group
RWE Gas Slovensko, s.r.o.

315,800

95,371

41,938

50,839

RWE Key Account CZ, s.r.o.

196,358

85,004

RWE Supply & Trading GmbH

110,489

1,829

NET4GAS, s.r.o.

Other
Total trade receivables

48,296

49,323

2,265,451

637,655

307,679

228,653

Advances paid
NET4GAS, s.r.o.
Other
Total advances paid

61,949

351

369,628

229,004

Anticipated assets / accruals and deferrals
Regional gas suppliers and distribution operators of the RWE Group
RWE Supply & Trading GmbH

39,497

73,879

9,739,465

7,296,773

RWE Aktiengesellschaft

2,178

65,207

RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o.

320,952

320,674

RWE Gas Slovensko, s.r.o.

65,864

56,433

RWE Česká republika a.s.

536,641

-

Other
Total anticipated assets / accruals and deferrals

24,418

10,146

10,729,015

7,823,112

2,023,276

-

Receivables from profit transfer
RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o.*
RWE Key Account CZ, s.r.o.*
Total receivables from profit transfer
*

For information about receivable from profit transfer see note 2.7 Receivables.

20,650

-

2,043,926

-
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31 December 2012
(CZK’000)

30 June 2012
(CZK’000)

27,162

119,066

Other receivables (from derivatives)
RWE Aktiengesellschaft
RWE Key Account CZ, s.r.o.
RWE Supply & Trading GmbH
Regional gas suppliers of the RWE Group

-

35,726

1,496,872

3,934,085

100,406

140,182

1,624,440

4,229,059

Regional gas suppliers and distribution operators of the RWE Group

10,004,406

7,237,164

RWE Aktiengesellschaft

Total other receivables
Loans receivable / cash-pooling receivables

19,800,000

50,500,000

RWE Interní služby, s.r.o.

400,000

400,000

RWE Key Account CZ, s.r.o.

280,673

267,675

RWE Gas Slovensko, s.r.o.

-

216,994

KA Contracting SK, s.r.o.

-

124,179

RWE Plynoprojekt, s.r.o.

10,503

102,451

Other

28,272

21,064

30,523,854

58,869,527

11,000,000

11,000,000

-

6,622,500

Total long-term loans

11,000,000

17,622,500

Total receivables / accruals and deferrals

58,556,314

89,410,857

Total loans receivable / cash-pooling receivables
Long-term loans
NET4GAS, s.r.o.
RWE GasNet, s.r.o.

*

For information about receivable from profit transfer see note 2.7 Receivables.
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31 December 2012
(CZK’000)

30 June 2012
(CZK’000)

NET4GAS, s.r.o.

143,081

487,474

RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o.

383,468

383,350

68,666

237,484

595,215

1,108,308

44,758

74,565

382,171

269,242

7,058,080

5,645,949

2,061

3,767

7,442,312

5,918,958

8,725

81,938

Trade payables

Other
Total trade payables
Total prepayments received
Anticipated payables / accruals and deferrals
NET4GAS, s.r.o.
RWE Supply & Trading GmbH
Other
Total anticipated payables / accruals and deferrals
Other payables (from derivatives)
Regional gas suppliers of the RWE Group
RWE Aktiengesellschaft
RWE Supply & Trading GmbH
RWE Key Account CZ, s.r.o.

8,331

1,268,879

1,742,110

3,356,532

11,475

-

1,770,641

4,707,349

Regional gas suppliers and distribution operators of the RWE Group

2,694,603

1,056,664

RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o.

2,670,638

1,769,966

NET4GAS, s.r.o.

5,102,037

4,249,486

Total other payables
cash-pooling loans received / payables

RWE Zákaznické služby, s.r.o.

74,227

29,344

RWE Distribuční služby, s.r.o.

251,405

103,593

RWE Interní služby, s.r.o.

100,949

100,894

-

3

RWE Key Account CZ, s.r.o.
KA Contracting ČR s.r.o.

187,061

135,676

RWE Gas Transit, s.r.o.

124,384

124,883

RWE Service CZ, s.r.o.

16,927

-

RWE Grid Holding, a.s.
RWE IT Czech s.r.o.

7,000

-

41,232

20,000

Total cash-pooling payables

11,270,463

7,590,509

Total payables / accruals and deferrals

21,123,389

19,399,689

The loans receivable, cash-pooling receivables and payables bear interest at market interest rates.
The Company cars are made available for use by Board members and other management in the total
acquisition costs of CZK 28,255,000 (as at 30 June 2012: CZK 29,107,000).
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The Company provides foreign members of management with accommodation, in the six month period
ended 31 December 2012 rent totalled to CZK 1,229,000 (as at 30 June 2012: CZK 1,203,000).
Share option bonus plan has been provided to the management, in the six month period ended
31 December 2012 provision for this plan was created in the amount of CZK 623,000
(as at 30 June 2012: CZK 1,950,000).
Besides the above disclosed remuneration and benefits, there was no other cash or non-cash
consideration provided in the six month period ended 31 December 2012 and in the six month period
ended 30 June 2012 to the Company’s shareholder, members of the Company’s Boards and management.

18 Fees paid and payable to the audit company
The information relating to the fees paid and payable for services performed by the audit company
is included in the consolidated financial statements of the ultimate parent company of the group.

19 Commitments
There were no capital commitments contracted by the Company as at 31 December 2012 and 30 June 2012.

20 Contingent liabilities
The Company issued guarantees as at 31 December 2012 in the amount of CZK 2,756,284,000
(as at 30 June 2012: CZK 995,681,000).
The complaint for compensation of damages filed by GBI Investments CZ, a.s. against
RWE Transgas ,a.s. was dismissed. The Prague Supreme Court dismissed an appeal of the legal successor
of GBI Investments CZ, a.s. against the negative decision of the Municipal Court in Prague in the end
of 2011. However, the plaintiff filed an extraordinary appeal against the decision of the Municipal Court
in Prague which will be handled and assessed by the Supreme Court.
The management of the Company is not aware of any other significant contingent liabilities
as at 30 June 2012 and 31 December 2012.

21 Cash flow statement
Cash and cash equivalents disclosed in the Cash flow statement can be analysed as follows:

Other cash equivalents
Cash in bank
Overdraft
Receivable / (liability) arising from cash-pooling
Total cash and cash equivalents

31 December 2012
(CZK’000)

30 June 2012
(CZK’000)

3

47

1,836,524

1,230,065

(28,637)

-

(7,398,110)

3,001,846

(5,590,220)

4,231,958
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22 Subsequent events
As at 1 January 2013, the business name of the Company was changed to RWE Supply & Trading CZ, a.s.
The change was reflected in the Commercial Register on 1 January 2013.
In connection with restructuring of the RWE Group in Czech Republic, commencing from 2013
the Company will concentrate its activities in the energy wholesale market. As at 1 January 2013,
444 employees of the Company were transferred to RWE Česká republika a.s. (“RWE ČR”) by transfer
of rights and obligations. On 1 January, RWE ČR took over the governance role in the RWE Group
in Czech Republic and officially commenced its operations.
On 15 January 2013 the Company sold its remaining 10% share in RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o.
to RWE Česká republika a.s., which became 100% owner of RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o. This transaction
was not recorded in the the Commercial register as at date of issues of the financial statements.
On 30 January 2013 the Company assigned RWE GasNet, s.r.o. long term loan to RWE Česká republika a.s.
(65% share of the loan) and to RWE Gas International N.V. (35% share of the loan) in the nominal value
ofCZK 6,858,500,000.
As at 1 January 2013, the subsidiary company RWE Plynoprojekt, s.r.o. merged with the subsidiary
company KA Contracting ČR s.r.o. RWE Plynoprojekt, s.r.o. was dissolved without liquidation
and on 1 January 2013 ceased to exist as a result of the merger.
No other events have occurred subsequent to year-end that would have a material impact
on the financial statements for the six month period ended 31 December 2012.
20 February 2013

Martin Friedrich Herrmann

Axel Gerhardy

Chairman of the Board of Directors

Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors
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6 Independent auditor’s report
6.1 Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements

To the shareholder of RWE Supply & Trading CZ, a.s.
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of RWE Transgas, a.s.
(the company was renamed to RWE Supply & Trading CZ, a.s. on 1 January 2013),
identification number 26460815, with registered office at Limuzská 12/3135, Praha 10
(“the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 December 2012,
the income statement, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement for
the period of 6 months then ended and notes, including a summary of significant
accounting policies (“the financial statements”).

Statutory Body’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The Statutory Body is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with Czech accounting legislation, and
for such internal controls as the Statutory Body determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Act on Auditors
of the Czech Republic, International Standards on Auditing and the related application
guidance of the Chamber of Auditors of the Czech Republic. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Audit, s.r.o., Hvězdova 1734/2c, 140 00 Prague 4, Czech Republic
T: +420 251 151 111, F: +420 251 156 111, www.pwc.com/cz
PricewaterhouseCoopers Audit, s.r.o., registered seat Hvězdova 1734/2c, 140 00 Prague 4, Czech Republic, Identification Number: 40765521, registered with
the Commercial Register kept by the Municipal Court in Prague, Section C, Insert 3637, and in the Register of Audit Companies with the Chamber of Auditors
of the Czech Republic under Licence No 021.
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Shareholder of RWE Supply & Trading CZ, a.s.
Independent auditor’s report

Auditor’s Responsibility (continued)
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgment, including assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Company’s
preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Company as at 31 December 2012, its financial performance and its
cash flows for the period of 6 months then ended in accordance with Czech accounting
legislation.
20 February 2013

represented by partner

Tomáš Bašta
Statutory Auditor, Licence No. 1966
Note
Our report has been prepared in the Czech language and in English. In all matters of interpretation of information, views or opinions, the Czech version of our
report takes precedence over the English version.
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6.2 Auditor's Report on the Annual Report

To the shareholder of RWE Supply & Trading CZ, a.s.
We have audited the financial statements of RWE Transgas, a.s. (the company
was renamed to RWE Supply & Trading CZ, a.s. on 1 January 2013), identification
number 26460815, with registered office at Limuzská 12/3135, Praha 10 – Strašnice
(“the Company”) for the period of six months ended 31 December 2012 disclosed
in the annual report on pages 44–75 and issued the opinion dated 20 February 2013
and disclosed on pages 78–79.

Report on the Annual Report
We have verified that the other information included in the annual report
of the Company for the period of six months ended 31 December 2012 is consistent
with the financial statements which are included in this annual report on pages
44–75. The Statutory Body is responsible for the accuracy of the annual report.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the consistency of the annual report with
the financial statements based on our verification procedures.

Auditor’s Responsibility
We conducted our verification procedures in accordance with the International
Standards on Auditing and the related application guidance of the Chamber
of Auditors of the Czech Republic. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the verification procedures to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the other
information included in the annual report which describes matters that are also
presented in the financial statements is, in all material respects, consistent with
the relevant financial statements. We believe that the verification procedures performed
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Audit, s.r.o., Hvězdova 1734/2c, 140 00 Prague 4, Czech Republic
T: +420 251 151 111, F: +420 251 156 111, www.pwc.com/cz
PricewaterhouseCoopers Audit, s.r.o., registered seat Hvězdova 1734/2c, 140 00 Prague 4, Czech Republic, Identification Number: 40765521, registered with
the Commercial Register kept by the Municipal Court in Prague, Section C, Insert 3637, and in the Register of Audit Companies with the Chamber of Auditors
of the Czech Republic under Licence No 021.
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Independent auditor’s report

Opinion
In our opinion, the other information included in the annual report of the Company for
the period of six months ended 31 December 2012 is consistent, in all material respects,
with the financial statements.
8 March 2013

represented by partner

Tomáš Bašta
Statutory Auditor, Licence No. 1966
Note
Our report has been prepared in the Czech language and in English. In all matters of interpretation of information, views or opinions, the Czech version of our
report takes precedence over the English version.
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Scheme of the relations between and control of companies along the relevant line
within the RWE Group as at 31 December 2012
RWE Aktiengesellschaft
100.00% RWE Beteiligungsverwaltung Ausland GmbH
98.00% RWE East, s.r.o.
51.00% EČS - Elektrárna Čechy-Střed, a.s.
100.00% RWE Gas International N.V.
100.00% RWE Česká republika a.s.
100.00% RWE Zákaznické služby, s.r.o.
90.00% RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o.
49.00% RWE Service CZ, s.r.o.
100.00% RWE Gas Slovensko, s.r.o.*
100.00% RWE Transgas, a.s.**
10.00% RWE Gas Storage, s.r.o.
100.00% RWE Interní služby, s.r.o.
100.00% RWE Plynoprojekt, s.r.o.***
100.00% RWE Key Account CZ, s.r.o.
100.00% KA Contracting ČR s.r.o.
85.00% KA Contracting SK, s.r.o.
98.20% TEPLO Rumburk, s.r.o.
15.00% KA Contracting SK, s.r.o.
100.00% RWE Grid Holding, a.s.
100.00% RWE Distribuční služby, s.r.o.
100.00% NET4GAS, s.r.o.
100.00% BRAWA, a.s.
100.00% RWE Energie, a.s.
100.00% RWE GasNet, s.r.o.
66.57% Východočeská plynárenská, a.s.
100.00% VČP Net, s.r.o.
67.73% Severomoravská plynárenská, a.s.
100.00% SMP Net, s.r.o.
50.12% Jihomoravská plynárenská, a.s.
100.00% JMP Net, s.r.o.
100.00% RWE Gas Transit, s.r.o.
100.00% RWE Hungária Tanácsadó Kft.
2.00% RWE East, s.r.o.
*
Not registered in the Commercial Register as at 31 December 2012.
** The Company has been renamed RWE Supply & Trading CZ, a.s. as of 1 January 2013.
***	The company was wound up without liquidation as of 1 January 2013 as a result of a national merger by acquisition,
with KA Contracting ČR s.r.o. as the acquiring company.
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